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Date : August 20, 2024 

To 

Mr. Sambhaji Solat, 

Deputy General Manager 

Listing Compliance 

BSE Ltd. 

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers 

Dalal Street 

Mumbai — 400 001 

Dear Sir, 

With reference to your letter dated today, please note that Date of notice of 
our Annual General Meeting was 31.07.2024 . We have uploaded Annual 
Report for the FY 2023-24 in BSE portal on 05.08.2024 and we have 
dispatched the notice of Annual General Meeting and Annul Report for the FY 
2023-24 to the shareholders on 07.08.2024. 

This was a typographical mistake to put Date of commencement of dispatch 
of Annual Report on 31.07.2024 . The Date of commencement of dispatch of 
Annual Report was on 07.08.2024. 

We have attached the postal communication letter for your necessary record. 

With regards, 

~~~ For Teesta Agro Industries Ltd. 

oss Abhinav Kumar Pandey 

- ~~. Company Secretary 
v J 
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TEESTA AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
RAJGANJ, JALPAIGURLWEST BENGAL, PIN -735134. 

Ph. No. 254203, Fax No.: 254256, E-mail:teestaagro86@gmail.com 
CIN - L24119WB1986PLC041245 

NOTICE 

Notice is hereby given that the 38 Annual General Meeting of the Members of TEESTA AGRO 

INDUSTRIES LIMITED will be held at Rajganj, Jalpaiguri, West Bengal, PIN- 735134, on Saturday, 
the 31st day of August, 2024 at 11 A.M. to transact the following business:- 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of Company for the financial 
year ended March 31, 2024 together with the Reports of the Auditors and Directors thereon. 

To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements (including Standalone Financial 
Statements) of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 and the Reports of 
the Board of Directors of the Company and the Statutory Auditors thereon, including 
Annexure thereto. 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Paramdeep Singh (DIN: 00550824) who retires by 
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment. 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sectidh 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. 

Paramdeep Singh (DIN: 00550824), who retires by rotation at this meeting and being eligible 
has offered himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the 
Company, liable to retire by rotation.” 

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Umesh Chandra Sahoo (DIN- 00550108) who retires by 
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment. 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. 
Umesh Chandra Sahoo (DIN- 00550108), who retires by rotation at this meeting and being 
eligible has offered herself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of 
the Company, liable to retire by rotation.” 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

4, Ratification of Remuneration Payable to The Cost Auditor M/s. D. Sabyasachi & Co. of the 
Company for the Financial Year ending March 31, 2025 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution. 



“RESOLVED that, pursuant to section 148(3) of the Companies, Act, 2013 and Rule 6(2) of the 
Companies ( Cost Records and Audit Rules ) 2014, M/s. D. Sabyasachi & Co., Cost 
Accountants (Registration No. 000369 ) be and are hereby appointed as the Cost Auditors of 
the company to conduct audit of cost Records made and maintained by the company 
pertaining to “ Single Super Phosphate Fertilizer, Sulphuric Acid and Mixture Fertilizer for 
the financial Year commencing on 1st April,2024 and ending on 31st March, 2025 at a 
remuneration of Rs.52,000 ( Rupees Fifty two thousand only ) plus Service Tax and 
reimbursement of out of pocket expenses.” 

By Order of the Board 
For Teesta Agro Industries Limited 

Place: Rajganj, Jalpaiguri 
West Bengal - 735134 fs 
Dated:31.07.2024 \ 

Hardev Singh 
(Managing Director) 

DIN: 00550781 

NOTES: 

1. Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 is enclosed. 

2. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO 

ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL, INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND THE PROXY 

NEED NOT BE A MEMBER. A PERSON CAN ACT AS PROXY ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS 

UPTO AND NOT EXCEEDING FIFITY (50) AND HOLDING IN THE AGGREGATE NOT 

MORE THAN TEN PERCENT (10%) OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY 

FURTHER, A MEMBER HOLDING MORE THAN TEN PERCENT (10%) OF THE TOTAL 

SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS MAY APPOINT A 

SINGLE PERSON AS PROXY AND SUCH PERSON SHALL NOT ACT AS PROXY FOR ANY 

OTHER PERSON OF MEMBER. THE INSTRUMENT APPOINTING PROXY MUST BE 

DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN 48 

HOURS BEFORE THE TIME OF HOLDING THE MEETING. 

3. Pursuant to Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013, the register of members and share transfer 

books of the Company will remain closed from Saturday, 24th day of August, 2024 to 
Saturday 31st day of August, 2024 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of forthcoming 
Annual General Meeting to be held on 31.08.2024. 

4. Members are requested to inform, of any change in their address, to the Share Transfer Agent 
of the Company immediately. 

5. Members, who are holding shares in identical order of names in more than one account, are 

requested to intimate to the Company, the ledger folio of such accounts together with the 

‘Gat 



Share Certificate(s) to enable the Company to consolidate all holdings into one account. The 
Share Certificates will be returned to the members after making the necessary endorsements in 
due course. 

6. Members/ Proxies should bring the attendance slip sent herewith, duly filled in, for attending 
the meeting and also their copies of the Annual Report. 

7. In terms of Section 101 and 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with the Rules made 

there under, the listed Companies may send the notice of annual general meeting and the 
annual report, including, Financial Statement, Board Report etc, by electronic mode. The 

Company is accordingly forwarding soft copies of the above referred documents to all those 
members who have registered their email Ids with their respective depository participants or 
with the share transfer agent of the company. 

8. To receive shareholders’ communications through electronic means, including annual reports 

and notice, members are requested to kindly register/update their email address with their 
respective depository participant, where shares are held in electronic form. If, however, shares 
are held in physical form, members are advised to register their - email address with 
Maheshwari Datamatics Pvt. Ltd. on mdpldc@yahoo.com 

9. Documents referred to in the Notice and the statement under section 102 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, shall be open for inspection by the members at the registered office of the Company 
on all working days (Monday to Friday) from 10.00 a.m. to 1.00 p.m. except holidays, up to the 
date of the meeting. 

10. Shareholders are also requested to take immediate action to demat their shares to avail easy 
liquidity since trading of shares of the Company are under compulsory demat mode as per 
the regulation of SEBI and also to prevent any loss of physical Share Certificate (if already 
complied with, please ignore this). 

Members may please note that SEBI vide its Circular No. 
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/ MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8 dated 25th January 2022 has mandated 

the listed companies to issue securities in dematerialized form only while processing service 

requests, viz. Issue of duplicate securities certificate; renewal/ exchange of securities 

certificate; endorsement; sub-division/splitting of securities certificate; consolidation of 

securities certificates/ folios; transmission and transposition. Further SEBI vide its circular No. 
SEBI/ HO/ MIRSD/ MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/ 2022/65 dated 18th May 2022 has simplified the 
procedure and standardized the format of documents for transmission of securities. 
Accordingly, members are requested to make service requests by submitting a duly filled and 

signed Form ISR-4 & ISR-5, as the case may be. The said form can be downloaded from the 
website of the Company and RTA. 

11. The Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI") vide its Circular dated 16th March, 2023 
has mandated furnishing of PAN, KYC details (ie., Postal Address with PIN Code, email 

address, mobile number, bank account details) and nomination details by physical holders of 
securities in prescribed forms. 



12. Electronic copy of the Annual Report for 2023-24 is being sent to all the members whose email 

13. 

14. 

IDs are registered with the Company / Depository Participants(s) for communication purposes 
unless any member has requested for a hard copy of the same. For members who have not 
registered their email address, physical copies of the Annual Report for 2023-24 is being sent 
in the permitted mode. 

In terms of SEBI Circular No. SEBI/ HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/ 2023/4 dated 5thJanuary 2023 

owing to the difficulties involved in dispatching of physical/hard copies of full annual report 
to shareholders are being sent in electronic mode to members those email address is registered 
with the Company or the Depository Participant (s). The members who have not updated their 
email address are requested to do so immediately since the requirement of sending physical 
copies of annual report are dispensed with. 

Members may also note that the Notice of the 38!" Annual General Meeting and the Annual 

Report for 2023-24 will also be available on the Company’s website www.teestaagro.in for 

their download. The physical copies of the aforesaid documents will also be available at the 
Company’s Registered Office at Mazabari, Jalpaiguri, West Bengal for inspection during 

normal business hours on working days. Even after registering for e-communication, 
members are entitled to receive such communication in physical form, upon making a request 
for the same, by post free of cost. For any communication, the shareholders may also send 
requests to the Company’s investor email id: www.teestaagro.in. 

Voting through electronic means 

In terms of the provisions of section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with Rule 
20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 (hereinafter 
called “the Rules” for the purpose of this section of the Notice) and Regulation 44 of SEBI ( 
Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the listing agreement, the 
Company is providing facility to exercise votes on the items of business given in the Notice 

through electronic voting system, to members holding shares as on 24 day of August, 2024 

(End of Day) being the Cut-off date fixed for determining voting rights of members, entitled to 
participate in the e-voting process, through the e-voting platform provided by Central 
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).The facility for voting, either through electronic 
voting system or through ballot/ polling paper shall also be made available at the venue of the 
38ttAnnual General Meeting. The members attending the meeting, who have not already cast 

their vote through remote e-voting may attend the meeting but shall not be entitled to cast 
their vote again at the AGM. The company has appointed CS Rantu Kumar Das (FCS-8437), 
Practicing Company Secretary as the Scrutinizer for conducting the remote e-voting and the 

voting process at the AGM in a fair and transparent manner. The instructions to members for 
voting electronically are as under:- 

The instructions for members for voting electronically are as under:- 

(i) The voting period begins on 28.08.2024 (10:00 A.M.) and ends on 30.08.2024 (5:00 

P.M.).During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical 
form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of 24.08.2024 /Jpay-cast 

ee) 
a 

a} 
“a 

i} 
if 

vi 



their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting 
thereafter. 

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to 
vote at the meeting venue. 

(iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBIYHO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under 

Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015; listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting 
facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been 

observed that the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/ retail 
shareholders is at a negligible level. 
Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to 
listed entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of 

multiple user [Ds and passwords by the shareholders. 

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it 
has been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single 
login credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/Depository 
Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to 
register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also 
enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process. 

(iv) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9,2020 on 

e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding\ securities 
in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with 
Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile 
number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

Pursuant to aforesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings 

for Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode is given below: 

Type of | Login Method 
shareholders 

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through 
Individual their existing user id and password. Option will be made available to 

Shareholders reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for 

holding users to login to Easi / Easiest 

securities in arehttps:/ /web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit 

Demat mode www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System 
with CDSL Myeasi. 

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e+ 
Voting option for eligible companies where the e voting is in progress as 
per the information provided by company. On clicking the e voting 

option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service 
provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting pening ON 

- 



joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there 
is also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service 
Providers ie. CDSL/NSDL/ KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can 
visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly. 

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available 
at https: / /web.cdslindia.com/ myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration. 

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing 
Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available’ 
on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user 
by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat 
Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e- 
Voting option where the e voting is in progress and also able to directly 
access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, 

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding 
securities in 

demat mode 

with NSDL 

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e- 
Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 
URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a 
mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the 
“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under 
‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your 
User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able 
to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-V oting” under e-Voting 
services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company 
name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed to 
e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period. 

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for 
IDeAS “Portal or click at 
https:/ /eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb /IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https:// www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have 
to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number 
hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on 
the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to 
NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be 
redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote 
during the remote e-Voting period. 

Individual 

Shareholders 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/ CDSL, fori 

pf ns . i 



(holding e-Voting facility. After Successful login, you will be able to see e- 
securities in Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be 
demat redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 
mode) login authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on 
through company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be 
their redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote 
Depository during the remote e-Voting period. 
Participants 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use 
Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical 

issues related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL 

Login type Helpdesk details 7 

Individual Shareholders Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 

holding securities in Demat CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
mode with CDSL helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at 022- 

23058738 and 22-23058542-43. 

Individual Shareholders Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 

holding securities in Demat NSDL helpdesk by sending a_ request at 
mode with NSDL evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 

and 1800 22 44 30 
. 

(v) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than 
individual shareholders holding in Demat form & physical shareholders. 

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com. 

2) Click on “Shareholders” module. 

3) Now enter your User ID 

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 

c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered 
with the Company. 

4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 

5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and 
voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used. 

6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below: 

Physical Form 



PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department | 
(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 

e Shareholders who have not updated their PAN _ with the 
Company/ Depository Participant are requested to use the sequence number 
sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA. 

Dividend | Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as 

Bank recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to login. 

Details e If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please 
OR Date |° enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as 
of 

(DOB) 
Birth mentioned in instruction (v). 

(vi) 

(vii) 

(viii) 

(ix) 

(xi) 

(xii) 

(xiii) 

(xiv) 

After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 

Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company 

selection screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach 
‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login 
password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by 
the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are 
eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is 
strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost 

care to keep your password confidential. 

For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting 
on the resolutions contained in this Notice. 

. 

Click on the EVSN for the relevant TEESTA AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED on which you 
choose to vote. 

On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the 
option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. ‘The option YES 
implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the 
Resolution. 

Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 

After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A 

confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to 

change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote. 

Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your 
vote. 

You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the 

Voting page. 



(xv) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the 
image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by 
the system. 

(xvi) Facility for Non - Individual Shareholders and Custodians -Remote Voting 

Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians 

are required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the 
“Corporates” module. 

A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should 
be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin 
login and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which 
they wish to vote on. 

The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and ‘on approval of the accounts they would be able to 
cast their vote. 

A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have 
issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system 
for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 
Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board 

Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly 

authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at 
the email address viz; eilevoting2014@gmail.com , if they have voted from individual tab & 

not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

(xvii) Mr. Rantu Kumar Das, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No.FCS8437), has been 
appointed as the Scrutinizer to Scrutinize the remote e-voting process in a fair and 

transparent manner. 

(xviii) At the Annual General Meeting, at the end of the discussion of the resolutions on which 
voting is to be held, the chairman shall with the assistance of the Scrutinizer order voting 

for all those members who are present but have no cast their vote electronically using the 
remote e-voting facility or Ballot Form. 

(xix) The Scrutinizer shall immediately after the conclusion of Voting at the Annual General 

(xx) 

(xxi) 

Meeting, first count the votes at the Annual General Meeting, thereafter unblock the votes 

cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the 

employment of the company and make not later than 48 hours of conclusion of the 

meeting, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if 
any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing who shall countersign the 
same. 

The Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing shall declare the result of voting 
forthwith. 

The results declared along with Scrutinizer’s Report shall be communicated to BSE. td 
Where the shares of the company are listed. ay 



(xxii) Please Contact Company’s registrar Maheshwari Datamatics Pvt. Ltd. Telephone No 
033-22482248, Email Id: mdpldc@yahoo.com for any further clarifications. 

(xxiii) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently 
Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com 

under help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

15. Information required to be furnished under the listing Agreement. The Names and Address 
of the Stock Exchanges where Company’s share is listed. 
1. Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. (Stock code :524204) 

PhirozeJeejeebhoy Towers, 
Dalal Street, 

Mumbai - 400 001 

The Listing Fees for the year 2023-2024 has been paid in time to BSE Ltd. 

Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 

Item No. 4 

The Board on the recommendation of the Audit Committee has approved the appointment and 

remuneration of M/s. D. Sabyasachi & Co. Cost Auditors to conduct the Audit of the cost records 
of the Company for the financial year 2024-25, 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Att read with the relevant provisions of © 
Companies ( Audit and Auditors ) Rules, 2014, the remuneration of Rs.52,000/- plus taxes as 

applicable and out of pocket expenses, was recommended by the Board and Audit Committee as 
payable to the Cost Auditors. The shareholders of the company are requested to approve the said 
remunerations, if so thought fit. 

Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at 

Special Business under Item No. 4 of the Notice, for ratification of remuneration payable to the 
Cost Auditors for the financial year ending March 31, 2025. 

The Board recommends the resolution for approval of the Members. 

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, and their relatives are in 

any way, concerned or interested, financial or otherwise of the aforesaid resolution except to the 

extent of their shareholdings in the Company. The Proposed Special Business does not relate to or 
affects any other company (financially or otherwise). 



Annexure -1 

Details of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the 38th Annual General Meeting [According to 
Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial 
Standards - 2 on General Meetings issued by the ICSI: 

Particulars Mr. Paramdeep Singh | Mr. Umesh Chandra Sahoo 

DIN: 00550824 00550108 
Date of Birth 22.10.1979 06.12.1956 
Date of first appointment on the Board 30.04.2002 30.11.2002 
Expertise in specific functional areas Commerce Commerce 
Qualification Graduate Graduate 
Designation Whole-time Director Executive Director 
Directorship held in other public companies A 2 
(excluding Foreign Companies and Section 8 Companies) 

Memberships/Chairmanships of other public Nil Nil 
companies (includes only Audit Committee and 
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee) 

No of shares held in the Company 155100 ---- 
Relationship between Managing Directors inter-se Son Nil 

By Order of the Board 
For Teesta Agro Indu 

Place: Rajganj, Jalpaiguri Z BS 
vo West Bengal - 735134 Ne = 1&8 

Dated: 31.07.2024 ~ Kor 26)2 \ 

Ay Hardev Singh 
jy a4 (Managing Director) 

DIN: 00550781 



TEESTA AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
Regd Address: MAZABARI RAJGANJ JALPAIGURI WB 735134 IN 

CIN; L24119WB1986PLC041245 

Dear members, 

BOARD REPORT 

On behalf of the Board of Directors, it is our pleasure to present the 38 Annual 

Report together with the Audited Statement of Accounts of Teesta Avro Industries 

Limited (“the company”) for the year ended on 31st March, 2024. 

Financial summary or performance of the company: 
( Rs. In lacs ) 

| Particulars Year ended Year ended 

31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Net turnover and Other Income 16473 28663. 

‘Profit before depreciation, interest & tax 854 1306 

Less : Depreciation 246 208 

: Interest . 101 70 

Profit/loss before tax 507 | 1022 

Less : Exceptional items oe 

: Provision for tax 

: Current Tax (85) (263) 
: Deferred Tax (61) (2 

Profit/ (loss) after taxation 361 734 

Operations: 

The turnover and other receipts of your company has been Rs, 16473 lacs against 
Rs. 28663 lacs in the previous year. The profit after taxation stood at Rs. 361 lacs as 
against Rs, 734 lacs in the previous year. 

Dividend: 

The Board has not recommended any dividend for the financial year 2023-24 in 

view of retaining cash for your Company's growth prospects. 



Share Capital: 

There has not been any change in the paid up capital of your company during the 

year under review. The paid up capital stands at Rs. 557 lacs. 

Listing agreement: 

The listing agreement has been entered into by the company with the BSF limited 
read with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Your Company has paid listing fee 

for financial year 2023-24, 

Fixed deposit: 

Your company did not invite or accept any deposits from public and/ or 
shareholders during the year under review. As of 31st March, 2024, there were no 

fixed deposits pending with the company. 

Research and development: 

Your company recognizes that research & development plays a critical role in 
supporting current operations as well as future growth. Your company has 

focused its attention towards improving quality of fertilizers to boost soil 

nutrients. 

Insurance: 

The company’s plants & machineries, factories? properties, stocks and movables 

are adequately Insured against various risks, 

Directors and key Managerial Personnel: 

At present your Board is duly constituted comprising of 10 (Ten) Directors, 

Sl. Name of Directors DIN Designation Appointment / 
No. _ Resignation 
1, MR. HARDEV SINGH | 00550781 | Managing =| ----- 

fi Director 

Be MR. UMESH 00550108 | Wholetime ----- 
CHANDRA SAHOO Director 

3. MR. PARAMDEEP 00550824 | Wholetime -— 
SINGH | Director 

4, MR. INDERDEEP 00879115 |Wholetime === 
| SINGH _ Director 

5. MS. JOGINDER KAUR | 00550860 | Director | =~ 
6, MR. SUDESH KUMAR | 07112159 | Independent Resigned on 

: Director 14.07.2023 
7. MS. BAISHAKHI = Independent —— 

[marry | 9708089 | Dcccton : 
5. MR. SUBASH 07273238 | Independent = 

CHANDRA Director 
SAMANTARAY 



9. Ms. SWATI SINGH 08621738 | Independent | Resigned en 
—_| Director 14.07.2023 

10, MR. PREM SHANKAR | 09091634 | Independent | —--- 
PANDEY Director | 

11. RASHI SARAF 10125808 | Independent Appointed on 

7 Director 01.08.2023 

T2: SHIWANGI PANDEY | 10206677 | Independent Appointed on 

| Director 01.08.2023 _ 

The company has received declarations from the independent director(s) of the 
company confirming that they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed 
under section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligation 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

The company has devised a policy for performance evaluation of independent 

directors and the board, which includes criteria for performance evaluation of the 

non-executive directors. 

Suitable resolutions for appointment/reappointment of directors, as referred 

above, will be placed for approval of members in the forthcoming Annual General 
Meeting. The brief resume and other information of the concerned directors, in 
terms of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 with stock exchange, have been detailed in the notice convening the 

forthcoming Annual General Meeting. 

There has been no change in the Company Secretary and CFO during the financial 
year. 

Board Meeting: 

During the year 2023-24, the Board of Directors met Hight times viz. on 29.04.2023, 

12.06.2023, 19.07.2023, 31.07.2023, 10.10.2023, 31.10.2023, 31.01.2024 and 

30.03.2024. 

Corporate Governance 

A report on Corporate Governance (in accordance with SEBI Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the auditors’ certificate on 
compliance by the company, have been included in the Annual Report as a part of 
this report. 

Directors’ Responsibility statement: 

Pursuant to the requirement under section 134(3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013 

with respect to directors’ responsibility statement, it is hereby confirmed that: 

(i) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st 
March, 2024, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along witht: ioe PP 8 & 
proper explanation relating to material departures; / 



(ii) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them 
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent 
so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company as at March 

31, 2024 and of the profit and loss of the company for that period; 

(iii) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies 

Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

(iv) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

(v) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the 
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and 
operating effectively. 

(vi) the directors has laid down internal financial control to be followed by the 

company and such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating 

effectively. 

Statutory Auditor: 

M/s Mantry & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No, 3150485) 

the statutory auditors of the Company, will hold office till the conclusion of the 

Annual General Meeting for the financial year 2026-27 for a second term of five 

consecutive years, . 

The report by the Auditors is self explanatory and has no qualification, reservation, 

adverse remark or disclaimer; hence no explanation or comments by the Board 

were required. 

Auditors Report: 

The auditors’ report read with relevant notes on accounts are self-explanatory and 
does not call for further clarification. 

Internal Auditors: 

The board of directors of your company has re-appointed M/s. L.B. Prasad & Co., 
Chartered Accountants Siliguri (Firm Registration No. 322661E) as internal 
auditors pursuant to the provision of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 for 
the financial year 2023-24. 

Cost auditors: 

Pursuant to section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and subject to notification of 
rules there under, the board of directors, on the recommendation of the audit 

committee has appointed M/s. D. Sabyasachi & Co. (Membership No. 00369), Cost 
Accountants, Kolkata as the cost auditors of the company for the financial year 

2024-25, M/s. D. Sabyasachi & Co. have confirmed that their appointment is within 
the limits and they are free from any disqualifications as provided in section 141 of | 
the act. 



Secretarial Audit: 

The board has appointed M/s. Rantu Das & Associates (Membership No. 8437) 
Practicing Company Secretary, to conduct Secretarial Audit for the Financial Year 

2023-24, The report of the secretarial auditors is enclosed as Annexure-I to this 
report. As regards observations and remarks made by him in the report we are to 
state that necessary steps are being taken for complying with the requirements. 

Policies 

The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
mandated the formulation of certain policies for all listed companies. All 
applicable policies are available under the head policy on the company’s website: 

www.teestaagro.in. The policies.are reviewed periodically by the board and 

updated based on need and new compliance requirement. 

Corporate Social Responsibility 

The Board constituted a committee of Corporate Social Responsibility pursuant to 
the requirement of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies 

(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. A policy on Corporate Social 
Responsibility was also adopted by the Board of Directors at the said meeting. This 
Policy has been placed in the Website of the Company at the www.teestaagro.in. 

As on the date of this report, the committee comprises three members as under: 

Name of the Member Category | Attendance of Committee 

= meeting 
— 30.03.2024 _ 
| Mr, Paramdeep Singh Chairman Yes 

Mr. Subash Chandra | Member Yes 
Samantaray a 

Mr. Prem Shankar Pandey Member Yes 

During the year under review one meeting was held on 30th March 2024 . All the 
members of the Committee were present at that meeting. 

Pursuant to the provisions of Sec 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable 
Rules, during the financial year 2023-24, the Company was required to spend a sum 
of Rs,15,43,118/- towards its CSR activities. As per the recommendation of CSR 
Committee, the Board of Directors approved the said sum to be spent on eligible 

causes in line with the Company's CSR Policy in association. The details of amounts 

spent through each of the above entity are mentioned below. 



Annual Report on CSR activities / initiatives 

Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 2(1) (c) of Companies 

(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Amendment Rules, 2021 

1. A brief outline of the company’s CSR Policy including overview of projects or 
programmes proposed to be undertaken, and a reference to the web-link to the 

CSR policy and projects and programmes are given below in Annexure - II. 

2. The composition of the CSR Committee : 
As on the date of this report, the committee comprises three members as under: 

Sl. | Name of Directors Designation/ | Number of | Number of 

No. Nature of | meetings of | meetings of 
Directorship CSR CSR 

Committee | Committee 

held during | attended 
the year | during 

- the year 

1. Mr. Paramdeep Singh | Non- 1 1 
| executive 

2. Mr. Subash Chandra | Independent 1 1 
Samantaray Director - 

3. Mr. Prem Shankar Pandey Independent 1 1 

| Director 
7. 

This Policy has been placed in the Website of the Company at the 
www.teestaagro.in, 

3. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance 
of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) 
Rules, 2014, if applicable - Not Applicable. 

4. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of 
the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount 

required for set off for the financial year, if any: Nil 

ul
 

Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)- Rs. 771,55,912 
6. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) - Rs. 

15,43,118 

(b) Surplus arising out of CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous 
financial year - 112,000 

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any - 112,000 

a= (d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year {6(a)+(b)+(c) - Rs. 14,31,118 aS das % 



a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 

Total Amount 
Spent for the 
Financial Year, 

Amount Unspent (in Rs.) 

Total Amount 

transferred to Unspent 

Amount transferred to any | 
fund specified under Schedule 

(in Rs.) CSR Account as per Vilas per second proviso to 
section 135(6). | section 135(5), 
Amount | Date of Name | Amount | Date of 

transfer of the transfer 
Fund | 

| 14,56,915 - NA NA | - NA + 

b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing project for the financial year: 
Sl. Name of 

No. | Project 
ltem from the 

list of activities 

in Schedule VII 

to the Act. 

Locations 

Districts 

(State) 

Amount 

Spent 

for the 

Project 
(Rs.) 

Mode 

ol 

implem 

entatia 

t= 

Direct 

Yes / 
No 

Mode of Implementing 

through 

implementing Agency 

Name: CS 

Riseistrati 

on 

1. Health camp 
expenses 

held. 

| 11.10.2025, 

(Patholopical 
ECG, test, 

inedicine, 

other exp) 

On 

hunch & 

Promoting health 

tare 
Jalpaiguri 4,56,915/- Yes 

pa
 

Update 

TO. 

dit. 16.3.24) 

infrastruture 
& sports 

facilities (chy 
DOD 3 

Promote rural sports birampur 1,00,000/- Yes 

3. | School 

(chq 
000247 
15,3.24) 

computer lab 

IL, 

dt, 

Promoting education Kahma 

Punjab 
50,000/- 

4, Improving 
infrastructur 

primery 

schoal 

& of ‘Govt 

Promoting education |Rahma 

Punjab 

1,00,000/- 

wl
 

Buult class 

room 

Promoting education Punjab] 2,00,000/- Yes 

6. Update 

infrastruture 

& sports 

facilities 

Promote rural sporis Birampur 50,000/- Yes 

Ys Guill Loilets 

for students 

Promo te better 

hygine for school 
students 

Gangrar, 
Rajasthan 

500,000, - Yes 

| TOTAL 14,56,915 



c) t spent in administrative overhead - Nil 

—_— 
\ HARDE SINGH 

}S ii Managing Director 

DUN- 00550781 

Contracts And Arrangements with Related parties: 

Your company has formulated policy on related party transaction (RTP) which is 

available on company’s website www.teestaagro.in. There was no transaction 
entered with related parties for the year under review. Thus disclosure required 

under section 134(3)(h) of the aet in form AOC-2 is enclosed as Annexure-III. 

Further, there are no material transactions with related party (with the promoters, 
directors or key managerial personnel) during the year under review, which is to be 
reported. 

Changes in nature of business, if any 

There has been no change in the nature of business of the company. Your company 
continues to be one of the leading manufacturers of fertilizer in the country. 

Material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the 
company 

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial 

position of the company between the end of the financial year to which the financial 
statements relate and the date of the report. 

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under section 186: 

The company has not given loans, guarantees or made investments during the year 
under review. 

Significant and material orders passed by the regulators 

During the year under review, no significant and material orders were passed by 

the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and the 
company’s operations. 

Obligation under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition & Redressal) Act 2013: 

Internal complaints committee has been set up to redress complaints received 
regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, 
trainees) are covered under this policy. 

ir ets eet. 

fl igs Sah 
o wil 



The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and 

disposed off during the year 2023-24. 

No of complaints received: Nil 
No of complaints disposed off: Nil 

Board Evaluation: 

The company has devised a policy for performance evaluation of independent 
directors and the board, which includes criteria for performance evaluation of the 
non-executive and executive directors. 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the formal annual 
evaluation was carried out for the board’s own performance, its committees and 

individual directors. 

A structured questionnaire was prepared after taking into consideration inputs 
received from the directors, covering various aspects of the board functioning 
including adequacy of the composition of the board and its committees, board 
culture, execution and performance of specific duties, obligations and governance. 

A separate exercise was carried out for the evaluation of individual directors (both 

executive and non-executive/independent directors), board committees and the 

chairman. The directors evaluation was broadly based on parameters such as, 

meeting the expectation of stakeholders, guidance and review of corporate 

strategy, risks, participation and attendance at board/committee meetings, 
interpersonal skills. The performance evaluation of the chairman of the company 
was undertaken by the independent directors taking into account the views of 
executive directors and non-executive directors. The independent directors 
assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the 
company’s management and the board. The directors expressed overall satisfaction 

on the evaluation process. Based on the feedback of the board evaluation process, 

appropriate measures were taken to further improve the process and other aspects. 

Particulars of employee: 

None of the employees, employed during the year, was in receipt of remuneration, 
in aggregate of Rs. 102,00,000 or more per annum for the Financial Year 2023-24, or 
Rs, 850,000 or more per month for any part of the financial year, as set out in the 
Companies ( Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel ) Rules, 

2014. Therefore no such details have been provided as required under section 
197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

The ratio of remuneration of each Director to the median employee's 

remuneration and other details in accordance wilh sub-section 12 of Section 197 of 

the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as amended, forms part of this report and i is 
marked as “Annexure-IV” ; 



Extracts of the annual return in form-MGT-9: 

Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 12(1) ef the 
Companies (Management And Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) extract of 
annual return in form MGT- 9 is marked as “Annexure-“V” and being hosted on 
the website of the company www.teestaagro.in, 

Vigil mechanism: 

Pursuant to the requirement of the section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
company has established vigil mechanism which also incorporates a whistle 
blower policy in terms of the listing agreement. Protected disclosures can be made 
by a whistle blower through an e-mail or phone or letter to the chairman of audit 
committee. 

Internal financial controls: 

The company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements. During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable 
material weaknesses in the design er operation were observed. 

Human resources and industrial relations: 

The industrial relations of the company with the personnel have continued to be 
cordial and amicable. Your directors acknowledge and appreciate the efforts and 
dedication of employees to the company. Your directors wish to place on record 
the co-operation received from the staffs and workers at all levels and at all units, 

Particular of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange 
earnings and outgo: 

Your company has directed its efforts to reduce energy costs by focusing on energy 
savings through the best optimization of operations on day to day basis. The 
company has used fuels in appropriate mix to attain maximum savings. 

As required under Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014, the particulars of energy 
conservation, technology, absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo is 
given in the prescribed format as an annexure to the report and marked as 
“Annexure-VI", 

Compliance with the provisions of Secretarial Standards issued by ICSI 

The Board of Directors hereby declare the compliance of the provisions of 
Secretarial Standards-1 (“Board Meetings”) and Secretarial Standards - 2 (“General 
Meetings") issued by ICSI and notified by the MCA U/s 118(10) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, for all the Board and General Mectings of the Company held during the 
Financial Year 2023-24. 



Details of application made or any preceding pending under IBC, 2016 during 
the FY along with the current status 

No applications are filed or pending under IBC, 2016 against the Compa ny. Hence 
the said provision is not applicable to the Company. 

The details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of 
one-time settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or 
Financial Institutions along with the reasons thereof: Not applicable 

Acknowledgments: 

Your directors take this opportunity to place on record their appreciation and 
sincere gratitude to the Government of India, Government of West Ben gal, and the 
bankers to the company for their valuable support and look forward to their 
continued co-operation in the years to come. 

Your directors acknowledge the support and co-operation received from. the 
shareholders and employees of your company. 

For and on behalf of the board of directors 

Place: Rajganj, Jalpaiguri 
West Bengal - 735134 
Dated: 31.07.2024 

Paramdeep Singh Hardev Singh 
DIN: 00550781 DIN: 00550824 

(Wholetime Director) (Managing Director)



TEESTA AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

Annexure to the Directors’ Report for the year ended 31st March, 2024 

Report on Corporate Governance 

Part C of Schedule V to the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) 

Regulation, 2015 

5 I Company's philosophy on corporate governance 

The company’s philosophy on corporate governance is the direction of improvement 
across various functional areas. The company’s essential character is shaped by the 

very value of transparency, professionalism and accountability. The company 

continuously endeavor's to improve on these aspects on an ongoing basis, 

Board of directors 

As on 31% March, 2024 Board of Directors comprises ten Directors, Three Directors 

are Whole Time Non- Independent Directors and One Directors are non = executive 

independent directors, one Director is Non- Executive Non- Independent director 

and one Director is Executive Non- Independent Director. 

None of the Directors are member of more than 10 committees and chairman of more 

than 5 committees, across all the companies in which they are a director. 

Bight Board Meetings were held during the year ended 29.04.2023, 12.06.2023, 

19.07.2023, 31.07.2023, 10.10.2023, 31.10.2023, 31.01.2024 and 30.03.2024 

Attendance of each of the director at the board meetings and the last Annual 
General Meeting (AGM) are as follows: 

Name of director Nature of No of Whether | No of other 

directorship | board last AGM | directorship 

meeting attended 

il attended = 

Mr. Hardev Singh Managing fal Yes 5 

Director 

Mr. Umesh Chandra Whole Time 8 Yes I 

Sahoo ____| Director — 
Mr. Paramdeep Singh Whole Tune 8 Yes 5 

Director | 

Mrs. Joginder Kaur Director 8 Yes ey 

Mr. Inderdeep Singh Whole time 8 Yes 5 

L | director 

Ms. Baishakhi Maity Independent 8 Yes 

a Director _ 

Mr. Subash Chandra Independent 8 Yes 0 



Samantaray director 

Mr. Prem Shankar Independent 8 Yes 0 
Pandey director 

Ms. Rashi Saraf Independent 5 Yes 0 
director 7 

Ms. Shiwangi Pandey Independent 8 Yes 0 
director 

Audit committee 

The composition of the audit committee is as under: 

(i) Mr. 5.C.Samantaray - Chairman- Independent Director 
(ii) Mr. Paramdeep Singh- Non Independent Director 

(iii) Mr. Prem Shankar Pandey - Independent Director 

During the year, four meetings of the Audit Committee were held on 24.04.2023, 
31.07.2023, 31.10.2023 and 31.01.2024. 

Nomination and remuneration committee 

The composition of the nomination and remuneration committee is as under: 

(i) Mr. S,C.Samantaray - Chairman- Independent Director 
(ii) Mr. Prem Shankar Pandey - Independent Director 
(ili) Ms. Baishakhi Maity - Independent director 

During the year, two meetings of the Nomination and remuneration committee 

were held on 31.07.2023 and 30.03.2024. 

Stakeholders committee 

The composition of the stakeholders committee is as under: 

(i) Mr. S.C.Samantaray- Chairman- Independent Director 
(ii) Mr. Hardev Singh- Non Independent Director 
(iii) Mr. Paramdeep Singh - Non Independent Director 

During the year four meetings of the committee was held on 24.04.2023, 31.07.2023, 
31.10.2023 and 31.01.2024. 

Code of conduct 

The Company has adopted the Code of Conduct for all Board members and Senior 
Management Personnel. All Board members and Senior Management Personnel as 
per Regulation 26(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) .2— 7S, 
Regulations, 2015, have affirmed compliance with the applicable Code of Conduct. A” 

ff 



declaration to this effect signed by the Managing Director of the Company forms part 

of this Report and is marked as “Annexure-VII” 

CEO / CFO Certification 

The Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company have given a 

certificate as required under Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. It forms part of the Report and is 
marked as “Annexure-VIII", 

Certificate for Non-Disqualification of Directors 

On an annual basis, the Company obtains from each Director, details of their Board 
and Committee positions he/she occupies in other Companies and changes, if any 
regarding their Directorships. he Company has obtained a certificate from M/s. 
Rantu Das & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, that none of the directors 
on the board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being 

appointed or continuing as directors of Companies by the Board/ Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs or any such authority and the same forms part of this report and is 
marked as “Annexure-[X” 

General Body Meetings 

The last Annual General Meeting of the company was held as under: 

| Financial year | Date Time bs Location 
| 2022-23 20-09-2023 11,00 am Mazabari Rajganj Jalpaiguri- 735134 

No special resolution was required to be put through ballot at the last AGM. 
No special resolution on matters requiring postal ballots are placed for shareholders’ 

approval at the ensuing annual general meeting. 

Disclosures 

All contracts/arrangements/ transactions entered by the company during the 
financial year with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an 
arm’s length basis. During the year, the company had not entered into any 

contracts/arrangements/ transactions with related parties which could be considered 
material in accordance with the policy of the company on materiality of related party 

transactions. 

Your directors draw attention of the members to note to the financial statement which 

sets out related party transactions disclosures, 

8. General shareholders information 

(a) Annual General Meeting : lst August, 2024 at 11:00 a.m at 

clate, time and venue the Registered office of the company 

At Mazabari Rajganj Jalpaipuri- 735134 



(b) Date of Book Closure : 24.08.2024 to 31.08.2024 

(c) Listing on Stock Exchange : The Bombay Stock Exchange 

The Listing Fees for the years 2023-24 has already been paid. 

(d)° Demat ISIN number of 

CDSL 

(e) Market Price Data 

(f) Registrar and Transfer 
Agents 

(g) Share Transfer System 

: 520 

: Rs. 78.40 on 31.03.24 

: Maheshwari Datamatics Pvt. Ltd. 
23, R. N. Mukherjee Road, Kolkata-700001 

: The company has appointed Maheshwari 
Datamatics Private Limited as Registrar and 
Share Transfer Agents in order to have 

common agency for share registry and other 

allied work. Share transfers in physical form 
are being done by the share registrar on regular 
basis. Share transfers are approved by the 
board of directors. After transfers are registered 

the share certificates are dispatched within 
stipulated time'to the transferees. 

(h) ‘Distribution of shareholding: The information is given at the end of the 

clause as on 31st March, 2024 

(i) Dematerialization of shares:The information is given at the end of the 

clause 

And liquidity 

(j) Outstanding DRS. / ADRS./ :Not Issued 

Warrants or any convertible 

Instruments, conversion date 

And likely impact on equity 

(k) Plant Location Mazabari, Rajganj Jalpaiguri, West 
Bengal- 735134 

(1) Address for correspondence  :The company’s registered office is situated 
at West Bengal. Shareholders 

correspondence may be directed to Teesta 
Agro Industries Limited Mazabari Rajganj 

Jalpaiguri- 735194 Mawes, F ae lS . 
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9. Distribution of shareholding as on 31st March, 2024 

No of share Shareholders Share holding 

Nos, % to total Nos. % to total 

Upto 500 , 13691 96.51 1703140 30.39 

501 to 1000 285 2.01 239935 4.28 
L001 to 2000 124 0,87 197351 | 3.52 

| 2001 to 3000 25 0,18 63628 1.13 
3001 to 4000 7 12 0.08 | 43691 | 0.78 
4001 to 5000 9 0.06 43579 0.78 
5001 to 10000 24 O17 | 179206 3.19 
Above 10000 _ 16 0.12 3137470 | 55.93 

Grand Total 14186 f 100 5610000 LOO 

10. Categories of shareholders as on 315t March, 2024 

| Category Shareholding 

' No. Of shares “of paid up capital 

Financial Institutions 210400 3.7504 
Badies corporate 63515 1.1678 
Others 5334085 7 95.0815 
Total 3610000 100.0000 

For and on behalf of the board of directors 

Place: Rajganj, Jalpaiguri 
West Bengal - 735134 

Dated: 31.07.2024 

Paramdeep Singh Hardev Sin gh 
. ; DIN: 00550761 DIN; 00550824 

(Wholetime Director) (Managing Director)



Annexure-l 

Form No. MR -3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON THE 315° DAY GF MARCH’ 2024 

[Pursuant to section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To 

The Members, 

Teesta Agro Industries Limited, 

Mazabari Rajganj, 

Jalpaiguri-735134, West Bengal 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory 
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by TEESTA AGRO INDUSTRIES 

LIMITED (CIN-L24119WB1986PLC041245), (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Company’), 

Secretarial Audit has been conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for 

evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion 

thereon. 

The Company's Management is responsible for preparation and maintenance of Secretarial 

records and for devising proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of 

applicable laws and regulations. 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Secretarial records, standards and 

procedure followed by the Company with respect to secretarial compliances. 

We believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the company’s 

management is adequate and appropriate for us to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and 

returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information 
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the 
conduct of secretarial audit, physically, we hereby report that in our opinion and to the 
best of our information, knowledge and belief and according to the explanations given to 

us, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on the 31St 
Day of March 2024 generally complied with the applicable statutory provisions listed 

hereunder to the extent applicable and also that the Company has proper Board-processes 

and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to th 
reporting made hereinafter; 



bw 

ce 

We have examined the books ,papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 

records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on the 315t Day of 

March 2024 according to the applicable provisions of: 

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

The Securities Contracts (Regulation Act, 1956 (“SCRA*) and the rules made thereunder: 

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye— laws framed thereunder; 

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder 
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment (FDI), Overseas Direct Investment (ODI) and 

External Commercial Borrowings (ECB) ; 

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India Act, 1992 (*SEBI Act’) to the extent applicable to the Company during the 
year :- 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 2015; * 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2018; Not applicable during the vear under review. 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits & 

Sweat Equity) Reeulations, 2021; Not applicable during the year under review. 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible 

Securities) Regulations, 2021; Not applicable during the year under review. 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to Issue and Share Transfer 

Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client - 

The Company has duly appointed a SEBI authorized Category | Registrar and Share 

Transfer Agent as required under Law, 

(2) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delistine of Equity Shares) 

Regulations, 2021; Not applicable during the year under review. 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 

2018; Not applicable during the year under review and 
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6. The following other laws specifically applicable ta the Company: 

Taxation Laws and Rules made there under; namely: 

a) Income Tax: 

b) GST; 

oe) Professional Tax; 

d) Tax Deducted at Sources: 

e) The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965: 

f) The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972: 

a) The Employees Provident Fund & Miscellaneous Act.1952; 

h) The Employees State Insurance Act.1948: 

We have also examined compliance with applicable clauses of the following: 

i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with 

respect to board and general meetings. 

ii) The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with the BSE Limited read with 

the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended (hereinafter referred to as SEBI 

LODR, 2015). 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, 

Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following 

observations: 

(i) BSE have revoked / withdrawn the suspension imposed in trading of equity shares of 

the Company. The revocation has taken effect from 29.06.2023. 

(ii) The Company has not filed Audited Financial Results for the Financial Year ended 

31.03.2023 within time frame and submitted Unaudited Financial Results for quarter 

ended 34.03.2023 on 03.05.2023. The Company has submitted Audited Financial 

Results for the FY ended 31.03.2023 as on 19.07.2023. 

(iii) None of the Independent Directors has qualified the required Proficiency Test and 

the required exemption from qualifying such Test has not been obtained also. 

While going through the registered mail id of the company, we have found notices from 

various regulatory bodies such as BSE and the same has been complied as per law. 

(Annexure-A), 



-4. 

WE FURTHER REPORT THAT AS FAR AS WE ARE ABLE TO ASCERTAIN: 

The Board of Directors of the Company is not duly constituted with proper balance of 
Executive Directors, Non —Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in 
the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review 
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. Adequate notice is given to 
all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were 
sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 
participation at the meeting. 

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and 

recorded as part of the minutes. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company 
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

It is stated that the compliance of all the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and other laws is the responsibility of the management. We have relied an the 
representation made by the company and Its officers for systems and mechanism set-up 
by the Company for compliances under applicable laws. Our examination on a test-check 
basis was limited to procedures followed by the company for ensuring the compliance with 
the said provisions. We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future 
viability of the company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has 
conducted its affairs. 

We further state that this is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial 
activities/statements of the company. 

Moreover, we have not covered any matter related to any other laws, other than those 
mentioned in the report which may be applicable to the Company, except, the 
aforementioned corporate and other laws of the Union of India. 

For, Rantu Das &Associates 

Date: 30.05.2024 Company Secretaries 

Place: Kolkata 

(Rantu Kumar Das) 

Partner 

C.P. No.- 9671 

Membership No.-F/8437 

UDIN- F008437F000503173 

PR. No. 2929/2023 



Note: The opinion expressed in the present Report is based on the information, facts and inputs 

provided by the Company management. 

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-B and 

forms an integral part of this Report. 

Annexure-A 

Exchange Reg, 6(1) for the quarter 

ended June 2023 

Sr. | Action taken by | Details of Details of action | Observations/ remarks 
No. violation taken E.g. fines, | of the Practicing 

warning letter, | Company Secretary, if | 

debarment, ete. any. 

1) Bombey Stock | Non Compliance under Rs: 1,07,380/- The company has 
submitted Reconciliation 

of Share Capital Audit 
Report under Reg. 76 in 

XBRL mode for June 30, 

2023 quarter an 

10.07.2023, One 

typographical error was 

mentioned in XBRL 

Form that 

the company did net 

have Compliance 

Officer, But the 

Company has appointed 

Mr. Abhinav Kumar 

Pandey as Company 

Secretary and 

Compliance Officer on 

01.11.2020, 

However, the Company 

has resubmitted the 

revised XBRL Form on 

22.08.2023 anc 

mentioned the cetails of 

Company Secretary. 

The Company send a 

letter to BSE and 

payment processing fees 

of SOP Fines of 

10,800/- for waiver of 

SOF After that 

Rs. 

fines, 

BSE waived the fine 7: 

09.10.2023. 



Annexure-‘B’ 

To, 

The Members, 

Teesta Agro Industries Limited, Mazabari 

Rajganj, 

Jalpaiguri-735134, West Bengal 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1, Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. Our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these Secretarial Records based on our Audits. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as we are appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the fairness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test 

basis to ensure that the facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and 

practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness of Financial Records and Books of Accounts of the Company. 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, 

rules and regulations and happening of events etc, 

5. The compliance of the provisions and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards, is the 

responsibility of the Management. Our examination was limited to the 

verificationofprocedureontestbasistotheextentapplicabletotheGompany, 

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance to the future viability of the Company nor of the 

efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

For, Rantu Das &Associates 

Date: 30.05.2024 Company Secretaries 

Place: Kolkata 

(Rantu Kumar Das} 

Partner 

C.P. No.- 9671 

Membership No.-F/8437 

UDIN- FO08437FO00503173 

PR. No. 2929/2023 



Annexure-IT 

CSR POLICY 

INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 

Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 impose statutory responsibility on Companies with an 

annual turnover of 164.73 crore INR and more, or a net worth of Rs. 110 crore and more, or a 

net profit of 3.61 crore INR and more to undertake Corporate Social Responsibility activities as 

enumerated under Schedule VII of Companies Act 2013 which otherwise popularly known as 

CSR activities. 

By promulgation of Section 135, every Company which qualifies with any of the above 

mentioned criteria in any of the financial year has to constitute a separate committee known as 

CSR Committee consisting of their board members, including at least one independent director 

to implement and monitor the CSR activities of the Company. 

1.3 Teesta Agro Industries Limited (TAIL) recognizes that its business activities have wide impact 

on the societies in which it operates, and therefore an effective practice is required giving due 

consideration to the interests of its stakeholders including shareholders, customers, employees, 

suppliers, business partners, local communities and other organizations. 

TAIL endeavors to make CSR an important agenda and is committed to its stakeholders to 

conduct its business in an accountable manner that creates a sustained positive impact on 

society. 

TAIL being a Company satisfying the threshold as stipulated under Section 135 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 is committed to establish the CSR Committee and formulate a CSR policy 

for the Company. 

POLICY OBJECTIVES 

The objectives of this policy are — 

Devising meaningful and effective strategies for carrying out CSR activities and engaging with all 

stakeholders towards implementation and monitoring. 



Make sustainable contributions to communities. 

Identify socio-economic opportunities to perform CSR activities. 

Focus on social welfare activities as envisaged in Schedule VI of Companies Act,2013. 

SCOPE OF THE POLICY 

‘Fhis Policy will focus on constitution of CSR Committee, roles and responsibilities of CSR 

Committee, CSR activities to be undertaken and allocation of funds for carrying out such CSR 

activities, Implementation and monitoring the execution of CSR activities for the Company. 

‘Ehe Policy shall apply to all CSR projects/programmes undertaken by the Company in India as 

per Schedule VIL ofthe Act. 

This policy shall be applicable to TAIL including all its subsidiaries, and all their employees. 

CSR COMMITTEE 

|. The CSR Committee of TATL comprises of three directors of which, one will be an 

independent director. The current composition of the CSR Committee shall be 

a. Mr. Paramdeep Singh — Independent Director and Chairman 

b. Mr, Subash Chandra Samantaray - Independent Director & Member 

ce. Mr. Prem Shankar Pandey — Independent Director & Member 

il. The CSR committee of TAIL will be responsible for: 

Formulating the CSR policy in compliance to Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 Identifying 

activities to be undertaken as per Schedule VII of the Companies Act 2013. Recommending to Board 

the CSR expenditure to be incurred, 

Recommending to Board, modifications to the CSR policy as and when required. Regularly 

HN om | ‘ : = , 
monitoring the implementation of the CSR policy 
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CSR BUDGET 

CSR Committee will recommend every year, the annual budgeted expenditure to the Board of 

Directors for its consideration and approval which shall not be less than 2% of the average net profits 

of the Company made during the three immediately preceding financial years. 

CSR ACTIVITIES 

The CSR Committee shall recommend to the Board of HAPL to implement its CSR activities covering 

any of the areas as detailed below in accordance with Schedule VII of Companies Act, 2013 :- 

* eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promoting health care including preventive 

health care and sanitation including contribution to the Swach Bharat Kosh set-up by the 

Central Government for the promotion of sanitation andmaking available safe drinking water; 

® promoting education, including special education and employment enhancing vocation skills 

especially among children, women, elderly, and the differently abundant livelihood 

enhancement projects; 

* promoting gender equality, empowering women, setting up homes and hostels for women and 

orphans; setting up old age homes, day care centers and such other facilities for senior citizens 

and measures for reducing inequalities faced by socially and economically backward groups; 

* ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance, protection of flora and fauna, 

animal welfare, agro forestry, conservation of natural resources and maintaining quality of 

soil, air and water inchiding contribution to the Clean Ganga Fund set-up by the Central 

Government for rejuvenation of river Ganga; 

® protection of national heritage, art and culture including restoration of buildings and sites of 

historical importance and works of art; setting up public libraries; promotion and development 

of traditional and handicrafts: 

® measures for the benefit of armed forces veterans, war widows and their dependents, Central 

Armed Police Forees (CAPF) and Central Para Military Forces (CPMI') veterans, and their 

dependents including widows; 

* training to promote rural sports, nationally recognized sports, Paralympics sports and Olympic 



Sports; 

* contribution to the Prime Minister's National Relief Fund or Prime Minister's Citizen 

Assistance and Relief in Emergency Situations Fund (PM CARES Fund) or any other find 

set up by the Central Government for socio-economic 

development and relief and welfare of the Scheduled Castes, the Scheduled Tribes, other 

backward classes, minorities and women; 

e Contribution to incubators or research and development projects in the field of science, 

technology, engineering and medicine, funded by the Central Government or State 

Government or Public Sector Undertaking or any agency of the Central Government or State 

Government; and Contributions to public funded Universities; Indian Institute of Technology 

(IITs); National Laboratories and autonomous bodies established under Department of 

Atomic Energy (DAE); Department of Biotechnology (DBT); Department of Science and 

Technology (DST); Department of Pharmaceuticals; Ministry of Ayurveda, Yoga and 

Naturopathy, Unani, Siddha and Homoeopathy (AYUSH); Ministry of Electronics and 

Information Technology and other bodies, namely Defense Research and Development 

Organisation (DRDO); Indian Council of Agricultural Research (ICAR); Indian Council of 

Medical Research (ICMR) and Council of Scientific and Industrial Research (CSIR), engaged 

in conducting research in science, technology, engineering and medicine aimed at promoting 

Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) 

e Rural development projects. 

e Slum area development 

« Contribution te corpus of a Trust / Society / Section 8 Companies etc., created exclusively for 

CSR activities; 

e Disaster management, including relief, rehabilitation and reconstruction activities 

IMPLEMENTATION 

The Board of TAIL shall based on the recommendations from the CSR Committee shall implement 

any of the activities as mentioned under Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 through any of the 

following ways :- 



* Registered Trust or Society or Company established by the Company. 

* Any other established Registered Trust or Society having track record of threeyears in 

undertaking similar programs or projects. 

* Collaborate with other Companies for undertaking projects or programs or CSRactivities. 

BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES ON CSR:- 

The Board of TAIL will be responsible for: 

approving the CSR policy as formulated by the CSR Committee 

ensuring that in each financial year the Company spends at least 29% of the average net profit 

excluding profits arising from overseas branches made during the three immediate preceding 

financial years. 

ensuring that every financial year funds committed by the Company for CSR activitiesare utilized 

effectively and regularly monitoring implementation. 

disclosing in its Annual Report the names of CSR Committee members, the content of the CSR 

policy and ensure annual reporting of its CSR activities on the Company website. 

ensuring annual reporting of CSR policy to the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of 

India, as per the prescribed format. 

As per Section 135 the reasons for under spending of the allocated CSR budget shall be specified in 

the Board’s Report. The surplus arising out of the CSR activities, if any, will not be considered as a 

part of the business profits of the company. 

FRAMEWORK ON MONITORING AND REPORTING 

TAIL’s CSR Committee shall monitor the implementation of the CSR Policy through periodic 

reviews. The Finance head of HAPL will present list of programmes, projects, and activities te the 

CSR Committee for its approval. The Committee will in turn recommend this to the Board for its 

final approval. In compliance with the Act and to ensure funds spent on CSR programmes are 



creating the desired impact on the ground, a comprehensive Monitoring and Reporting framework 

will be put in place. The monitoring and reporting mechanism is divided into three distinct areas: 

Programme Monitoring: 

Evaluation: 

Reporting and Documentation: 

Programme Monitoring: 

Programme monitoring mechanism will ensure: 

the CSR policy is implemented as per the Act and the Rules. 

The CSR policy is implemented ensuring that all projects/programmes as budgetedare duly carried 

out 

Il. CSR spends will be closely monitored and funds shall be released against verifiedutilizations as 

per the approved work plans. ~ 

Ill. CSR spends will be audited in an accountable and transparent manner. 

IV, Quarterly review by the CSR committee and six monthly review by the Board. 

Evaluation 

|. A MIS monitoring mechanism will be put in place. 

ll. There shall be clarity about the scope of the programme and the need beforeevaluations 

are undertaken. 

Documentation and Reporting 

The CSR Committee will prepare the annual CSR report to be filed by the Company on approval of 

the Board. This report will ensure: 



~ CSR projects and programmes are being properly documented. 

— The Accountability is fixed at each level of CSR process and implementation. 

CONCLUSION 

Our Board of Directors, our Management and all of our employees subscribe to this policy with 

compassionate care. We believe and act on an ethos of generosity and compassion, characterized by a 

willingness to build a society that works for everyone. This is the cornerstone of our CSR policy. 

ANNEXURE-ILI 

AOC-2 = 

(Pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014) 

Form for disclosure of particulars of Contracts/ Arrangements entered into by the Company with Related 

Parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain Arms’ Length Basis 

Transactions under third proviso thereto to. 

1. Details of Contracts or arrangement or transaction not at arm’s length basis: - NIL 

2, Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions 

Sl. Particulars Details 

No 

1. | Name(s) of the | Mr. Mr. Mr. | Mr, Mr. Anil | Cama LSB 

related party Hardev Umesh | Inderde | Pavamde | Kumar Infra Leasing 

and nature of Singh, Chandr | ep ep Singh, | Tripathy, | Limited | Limited 

relationship Managin | . Ssho. o, | Singh, Whole CFO 

g _ time 



Director | Whole Whole director 

time time 

director | director 

2. | Nature of Remuner | Remuner | Contribu | Contribu | Contribu | Rent Hire 

contracts / ation ation& | tion tion tion Receipt | Purchase 
arrangements /t PR fram Loan 

ransactions property 

3, | Durationof the | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 
contracts / 

arrangements / 

transactions 

4. | Salient termsof | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 
the contracts or 

arrangements or 

transactions 

including the 

value, ifany 

5, | Date(s) of Nil Nil Nil Nil | Nil Nil Nil 
approval by the 

board, if any 

6. | Amount paidas | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 
advances, ifany | 

For and on behalf of the board of directors 

but SN aa 
Hardev Singh Paramdeep Singh 
DIN: 00550781 DIN: 005350824 

(Managing Director) (Whole Time Director) 

Place: Rajganj, Jalpaiguri 
West Bengal - 735134 
Dated: 31.07.2024 



ANNEXURE-IV 

Statement of Disclosure under Section 197(12) of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

remuneration is as per the 

policy of the remuneration 

Company. 

SL. Requirements of Rule 5(1) Name & Designation of Managerial | Details 
No. Personnel 

1, The ratio of remuneration of | Mr. Hardev Singh, MD 25 

each director to the median | Mr. Umesh Chandra Sahoo, WI'D 10 

remuneration of the employees | Mr. Paramdeep Singh, WID 4 
for the FY | Mrs. JoginderKaur, Director NA 

Mr. Inderdeep Singh, WTD vi a 

E The percentage increase in | Mr. Hardev Singh, MD No change 

remuneration of each director, | Mr, Umesh Chandra Sahoo, WTD No change 
CFO, CEO,CS or manager, if | Mr. Paramdeep Singh, WTD No change 
any, in the financial year Mrs. JoginderKaur, Director No change 

Mr. Inderdeep Singh, WTD No change 
Mr. Anil Kumar Tripathy, CFO No change - 

7 Mr. Abhinav Kumar Pandey, CS _No change | 

& The percentage increase in the | The median remuneration of the employees in the 

median remuneration of | financial year was increased by 5%. 
employees in the financial 
year. 

4. The number of permanent | There were 75 Employees as on 31.03.2024 
employees on the rolls of ~ 

Company. 

5. Average percentile increase | The average percent increase in the total managerial 
already made in the salaries of | remuneration is 5%. 

employees other than the 

managerial personnel in the | The average percent increase in the salaries of employees 
last financial year and _ its | other than the managerial personnel is 5%. 
comparison with percentile 
increase in the managerial | There are no exceptional circumstances for increase in 
remuneration and justification | the managerial remuneration and the increase is 
thereof and point out if there commensurate to market standards. 

are any exceptional 

circumstances for Increases in 

the managerial remuneration. 

6. Affirmation that the It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per 
the Remuneration Policy for Directors, KMP and other 
employees. 

Note: Managing Director & Whole Time Director are Whole Time Directors & Other Directors are 

Non -Executive/Independent Directors, who are paid only sitting fees for attending the Board 

or 

a =<) 23 
a } 
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and Committee meetings. Hence, ratios provided are only for Managing Director & Whole ‘Time 

Director. 

For and on behalf of the board of directors 

Ew 
—-+, - 

Hardev Singh Paramdeep Singh 

DIN: 00550781 DIN: 00550824 

(Managing Director) (Whole Time Director) 

Place: Rajganj, Jalpaiguri 

West Bengal - 735134 
Dated: 31.07.2024 



ANNEXURE-V 

FORM NO. MGT-9 

Extract of annual return 

As on the financial year ended on 31st match, 2024 

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12 (1) of the Companies (Management And 
‘ Administration) Rules, 2014] 

L Registration and other details: 

) [CIN L24119WB1986PLC041245 
Ti) Registration Date 08/09/1986 

li) | Name of the Com pany TEESTA AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

Iv) ‘Address of registered office Mazabari Rajgarj, Jalpaiguri-735134, West Bengal, 
| India 
V) Category / sub-category of the company Public company limited by shares 

Vi) | Whether Listed company (yes/no) Yes (BSE Limited) 
Vi) | Name, address and contactdetails of Registrar | Maheshwari Datamatics Pvt. Ltd. : 

and Transfer Agent, if any 23, BR. N, Mukherjee Road 
Kolkata-700001 i 

Vill) | PAN AABCT1252D) || 

Il, Principal business activities of the company 

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:- 

Si. Name and description of main products / NIC code of the products | "% to total turnover of the 
No. | services : /services company 
1 Single Super Phosphate, NPK Mixture | 310310 100 

Fertilizer, Sulphuric Acid. 

MI. Particulars of holding, subsidiary and associate companies - 

Sr. | Name and address of the company CIN/GIN Holding/ Mu af Applicable | 
No. Subsidiary / share section 

associates of held 
The company 

1. NA NA NA NA NA 



TV. 

|. Category-wise shareholding. 

Share holding pattern (equity share capital breakup as percentage of total equity) 

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity) 

|) Category-wise Share Holding 

Category of 

Shareholders 

No of Shares held at the beginning of the 

year [As on 01/Apr/2023] 
No of Shares held at the end of the year 

[As on 31/Mar/2024] 
| 9% 

Demat Physical 

46 of 

Total 

Total — Shares Demat 

| 
Physical | Total 

St of 

Total 

Shares 

A. Promoters 

(1) Indian 

change 

during 

the 

Year 

a) Individual/ 

HUF 2483390 2483890 | 44.2761 2483890 0 | 2483890 44.2761 0.0000 

b) Central Govt 

c) State Govt(s) 

d) Bodies Corp. 

e} Banks/Fl 

f) Society/Trust | 

Sub-total (A)(1) 2483890 2483890 | 44.2761 2483890 0 | 2483890 44.2761 0.0000 

(2) Foreign 

a) NRIs - 

Individuals 

b) Other - 

| Individuals 

c) Bodies Corp. 

d) Banks/Fl 

|) Any other 

Sub-total (A}(2) Q| 0.0000 | 0.0000 

Total 

shareholding of 

Promoter 

(A}=(A)(1)+(A)(2) 24833890 

T 

| 
2483890 | 44.2761 2483890 | O | 2483890 44.2761 0.0000 

B. Public 

Shareholding 

1. Institutions 

a) Mutual Funds 210000 0) 210000 3.7433 210000 0 | 210000 | 3.7433 0.0000. 
b) Banks/Fl Q 400 400 0.0071 0 400 400 | 0.0071 0.0000 

c)Central Govt 

_d) State Gavt(s) 

e) Venture 

Capital Funds 

f) Insurance 

Companies 



B) Fils 

h) Foreign 

Venture Capital 

Funds 

i) Others 
(specify) 

Alternate 

Investment 

Funds 

Foreign Portfolio 

Investor 

| Category | 
Foreign Portfolio 

Investor 

Category Il 

Provident Funds 

/ Pension Funds 

Qualified 
Foreign Investor 

Asset 

Reconstruction 

Companies 

Other Financial 

Institutions 

Sovereign 

Wealth Funds 

NBFCs registered 

with RBI 

Foreign Direct 

Investment 

Sovereign 

Wealth Funds - 

Foreign 

Foreign Bank 

Fareign Bodies-D 

R 

| Other Foreign 

Part Folio 

Investors 

Shareholding by 
Companies or 

Bodies 

Corporate where 

Central/State 

Government isa 

promoter 

Sub-total(B)(1):- 210000 400 | 210400 3.7504 | 210000 
2. Non- 

Institutions 

400 | 210400 3.7504 0.0000 | 

a) Bodies Corp. 



i} Indian 39365 26150 65515 1.1678 23375 25150 48525 0.8650 -0.3028 | 
ii) Overseas 

b) Individuals 

i) Individual 

shareholders 

holding nominal 

share capital 

upto Rs. 1 lakh 406930 1958200 2365130 42,1592 482750 1912400 2395150 42.6943 | 0.5351 ii) Individual 

shareholders 

holding nominal 

share capital in 

excess of Rs. 1 

lakh 393980 13000 406980 72545 391980 13000 404980 7.2189 
c} Others 

(Specify) 

Non Resident 

Indians 42438 12000 54438 | 0.9704 22835 12000 34835, 0.6209 Qualified 

Foreign Investor 

Custodian of 

Enemy Property 

Foreign 

Nationals 

Clearing 

Members 275 275 0.0049 275 275 0.0049 0.0000 
Trusts 

Foreign Portfolio 

Invester 

(Individual) 

Associate 

Companies / 

Subsidiaries 

Employee Trusts 

Resident 

Individual (HUF) 21472 1900 23372 0.4166 30045 1900 31945 0.5694 | 0.1528 | Domestic 

Corparate 

Unclaimed 

Shares Account 

Investor 

Education and 

Protection Fund 

Authority 

Directors and 

their relatives 

Key Managerial 

Persone 

Relatives of 

Promoters 



Trusts where 

any person 

belonging to 

Promoter and 

Promoter Group 

category is 

trustee, 

beneficiary or 

author of the 

trust 
2 

Foreign 

Government 
—| 

Sub-total(B)(2):- 904460 | 2011250 | 2915710 51.9734 | 951260 | 1964450 | 2915710 | 51.9734! o,c000 
Total Public 

| 
Shareholding 

| (B}=(8)(1}+ | 
(B)(2) 1114460 | 2011650 | 3126110 55.7238 | 1161260 | 1964850 | 3126110] 55,7238 | 0.0000 
C1. Shares held 

by Custodian for 

GDRs & ADRs : 
C.2. Employee 

Benefit 

Trust/Employee 

Welfare Trust 

| under SEBI 

Grand Total 

(A+B+C} 3598350 2011650 | 5610000 |. 100.0000 | 3645150 | 1964850 5610000 | 100.0000 | 0.0000 
ii) Shareholding of Promoters- = 7 

| | | 
Shareholding at the beginning of the Shareholding at the end of the year 

year [As on 01/Apr/2023] [As on 31/Mar/2024] 

%of | % 
Shares change 

| Pledaed in share 

% Of Shares holding 

%oftotal | Pledged / %oftotal | encumb | during 
Sharesof | encumbered Sharesof |eredto | the Year 

SI No. of the to total No. of | the total 
No | Shareholder's Name | Shares Company shares Shares | Company shares 

1 | HARDEV SINGH 1592190 | 28.3813 0.0000 1592190 28.3813 0.0000 0,0000 
2. | JOGINDER KAUR 587600 | 10.4742 0.0000 587600 10.4742 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 
43 PARAMDEEP SINGH 155100 2.7647 0.0000 | 155100 2.7647 0.0000 0.0000 | 
4 | INDERDEEP SINGH 149000 2.6560 0.0000 149000 2.6560 0.0000 0.0000 

TOTAL 2483890 44.2761 0.0000 | 2483890 | 44.2761 0.0000 0.0000 



iii) Change in | 
Promoters’ | 
Shareholding 

(please 

specify, if 

there is no 

change) 

Cumulative 

Shareholding 
Shareholding at during the 

| the beginning year 

| [01/Apr/231/end [O4/Apr/23 
of the year to 

_ (31/Mar/24] 31/Mar/24] 

% of total % of total 

shares of shares of 

the the 
S| No Name _ No. of shares company | No. of shares | company 

1 | JOGINDER KAUR 
01-04-2023 587600 | 10.4742| 

| 31-03-2024 587600 | 10.4742 587600 | 10,4742 
2 | HARDEV SINGH 

01-04-2023 ie 1592190 28.3813 - 

31-03-2024 1592190 28.3813 1592190 28.3813 

3 | PARAMDEEP SINGH 

01-04-2023 155100 7 2.7647 

31-03-2024 155100 2.7647 155100 2.7647 
4 | INDERDEEP SINGH 

01-04-2023 149000 2.6560 i 

31-03-2024 149000 2.6560 149000 2.6560 

iv) 

Shareholdin 

é Pattern of 

top ten 

Shareholder 

L> _ 

(Other than 

Directors, 

Promoters 

and Holders 

of GDRs and 

ADRs): : 

Shareholding at Cumulative 

the beginning Shareholdin 

| (01/Apr/23]/en g during the 
, dof the year year 

| [31/Mar/24] [01/Apr/23 

raf 

fh 

\8 

= 
a 

(
a
l
e
 aee

 



to 

31/Mar/24] 

% of %of | 
total total 
shares shares 
of the of the . 
compan | No. of compan S| No Name No. of shares ly shares y | BM SHARMA * 

| 01-04-2023 13000 | 0.2317 
31-03-2024 13000 | 0.2317 13000 | 0.2317, 

MAHENDRA GIRDHARILAL 
| 01-04-2023 78440 | 1.3982 

31-03-2024 78440 | 1.3982 | 78440 | 1.3982 

MAGNUM EQUITY LINKED SAVINGS SCHEME 
1995 | | 01-04-2023 210000 | 3.7433 _| 31-03-2024 210000 | 3.7433 210000 | 3.7433 

BANHEM STOCK BROKING PRIVATE LIMITED 
it 
01-04-2023 ~ 15010 | 0.2676 | 30/09/2023 - Transfer -12000 | 0.2139 3010 | 0.0537 31/12/2023 - Transfer -3010 | 0.0537 O'| 0.0000 | 31-03-2024 0) 0.0000 | 0| 0.0000 

ALOKE KUMAR BASU | | 01-04-2023 21700 | 0.3868 | 31-03-2024 21700 | 0.3868 21700 | 0.3868 | 

RUCHIRA GOYAL a 01-04-2023 0| 0.0000 _| 30/09/2023 - Transfer 15037 | 0.2680 15037 | 0.2680 31/12/2023 - Transfer -4447 | _ 0.0793 10590 | 0.1888 | 31/03/2024 - Transfer -1727 | _0,0308 8863 | 0.1580 

THYAGARAIAN GURUMURTHY * _| 01-04-2023 11104 | 0.1979 
31-03-2024 11104 | 0.1979 | 11104 | 0.1979 | 

GAGANDEEP KAUR BRAR 
01-04-2023 106500 | 1.8984 | 



31-03-2024 106500 | 1.8984 106500 | 1.8984 

9 | JOSEPH BENEDICT ROSARIO # 7 | 
01-04-2023 20003 | 0.3566 __ | 
30/09/2023 - Transfer -20003 0.3566 0 0.0000 

31-03-2024 o| 0.0000 0.0000 

10 | PRATIK RAJENDRA GANDHI 7 | 
01-04-2023 16500 | 0.2941 - 
31-03-2024 16500| 0.2941 16500 | 0.2941 

11 | MANPRIYA KAHMA 7 
01-04-2023 go000 | 1.4260 
31-03-2024 80000 | 1.4260 g0000 | 1.4260 

12 | MADHUBEN DHIRAJLAL GANDHI ; | 
01-04-2023 _ 15000 | 0.2674 ; 
31-03-2024 15000 | 0.2674 15000 | 0.2674 

13 | AMBIKA SINGH 7 | 
01-04-2023 g0000 | 1.4260 

| 31-03-2024 gooo0| 1.4260 g0o00 | - 1.4260 

V. Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

Sr. | For each of the directors Shareholding at the beginning of the | Shareholding at the end of the = 

No: | and KMP year- Ist April, 2024 VYear- 3ist March, 2023 

Name of the | No. Of shares % of total No, Of shares % of total shares 

director/kmp shares Of the company 

OF the 

_ 2 company 

al TIARDEV SINGH 1592190 28.3813.% 1592190 38.5813 % 

2. | JOGINDER KAUR 587600 10.4742% 587600 10.4742% 

a. PARAMBEEP SINGH 155100 2.7647 % | 155100 2.7647% 

4. INDERDEEP SINGH 149000 2.6560% 149000 2.6560 % 

V. Indebtedness 

Indebtedness of the company including interest outstanding/ accrued but not due for payment 

Particulars Secured loans | Unsecured Deposits | Total | 

Excluding Loans Inclebted ness 

Deposits | 

fete, 
. , Need a 

as Hal. 26] 4 |] 
a4 ome | 

es An ff 



the 

Financial year 01.04.2023 

Indebtedness at the beginning of | 

1) Principal Amount 24,28,00,000/- 1,05,00,000/ - 25,33,00,000/- 

2) Interest due but not paid 

3) Interest accrued but not due 

Total of (1+2+3) 24,28, 00,000/- 1,03,00,000/- 25,33,00,000/ - 

Change in indebtedness durin @ 
the 

Financial year 

+ Addition 4,09,00,000/- 6,09,00,000,/- 

-Reduction 12,76,00,000/- — | 12,76,00,000/- 
Net change 12,76,00,000/- 6,09,00,000/- 18,85,00,000/- | 

Indebtedness at the end of the 

financial year-31.03.2024 

1) Principal Amount 11,52,00,000/- 7,14,00,000/- 18,66,00,000/- 
2) Interest due but not paid 

| 3) interest accrued but not due 

11,52,00,000/- 7,14,00,000/- 18,66,00,000)/- 

Vi Remuneration of directors and key managerial personnel 

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-Time Directors And/Or Manager: 

Sr. | Particulars of remuneration | Name of MD/WTD/Manager ( Rs.) | Total 
No Hardev Umesh Paramdeep | Inderdeep | Amount 

Singh Chandra Singh Singh (Rs.) 
| (Managing | Sahoo (Wholetime (Wholetime 
Director) | (Wholetime | Director) Director) 

Director) 

1. | Gross salary ‘| 8400000 [3100000 | 1400000 2600000 15500000 
(a) Sala ry as per provisions 

contained in section 17(1) 
of the Income Tax Act 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 
17(2) Income Tax Act, 1961 

(c) Profits in lieu of salary 

under section 17(3) Income 
Tax Act, 196] 

Stock option 

Sweat equity 



Commission 

- as % of profit 
- others, specify 

Others, please specify 
Provident fund & other funds | 

Performance bonus 

Total (A) 8400000 3500000 1400000 1500000 14600000 

Ceiling as per the act 

B. Remuneration to Other Directors: 

—— 

_| 

SL. Particulars of 
remuneration 

Name of directors Total 

Amoaut 

Subash 

Chandra 

Sarmantry 

(Independent 
Director) 

] Prem Shankar 
Pand ey 

(Independent 

Director) | 

Shiwangi 
Pandey 

(Independent 

Director) 

Kashi Sarat 

(Independent 

Director) 

1. Independent directors NIL 

* fee for attending beard / 
committee meetings 

* commission 

» others, please specify 

NIL NIL NIL NIL 

Total (1) - 

2. Other 

lirectors 

* fee for attending beard / 
committee meelings 

* commission 

* others, please specify 

non-executive | - 

Total (2) - 
| Total (B)=(1+2) | NIL | NIL, NIL NIL 

Tetal mana gerial 

remuneration 

Overall ceiling as per the 
act 

C. Remuneration to key managerial personnel other than MD / Manager / WTD



No 

Grogs salary 

(a) Salary as per provisions 

contained in section 17(1) 
of thé Income Tax Act 

Anil Kumar Tripathy 

[CFO(KMP)] 
Abhinav Kumar Pandey 

(Company Secretary) 

Amount 

ARs.) 

| 23,00,000/- 2,00,000/- 2500000 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 

17(2) Income Tax Act, 
1961 

(c) Profits in heu of salary 
under section 17(3) 
Income Tax Act, 1961 

ha
 

Stock option 

Sweat equity 

Commission 

- as % of profit 
- others, specify 

Others, please specify 

Provident fund & other Aids 

Performance bonus 

Total (C) 2300000 
~! 

200000 2500000 

Ceiling as per the act 

VII. Penalties/ punishment/ compounding of offences (under the Companies Act): Nil 

For anckon behalf of the board of directors 

hw 
——, 

Hardev Singh Paramdeep Singh 
DIN: 00550781 DIN: 00550824 

(Managing Director) (Whole ‘Time Director) 

Place: Rajganj, Jalpaiguri 

West Bengal - 735134 
Dated: 31.07.2024 



TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT 

Information under section 134 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014: 

Conservation of energy: 

ANNEXURE-VI 

Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies 

of energy - 
A) The steps taken or impact on conservation New motors, equipments light fittings 

added/replaced during this year are energy | 
| efficient 

B) The steps taken by the company for 
utilizing alternate sources of energy- 

Our steam turbine is capable to generate 05 | 
| MW eco-friendly power from waste steam of 
our Sulphuric Acid Plant. 

C) The capital investment on 
conservation equipment 

energy We are overhauling its blower system to add 
a smaller and energy efficient one, so that it 
will operate for more time and save our 
energy bill 

Technology absorption: 

absorption - 
A) The efforts made towards technology | 

B) The benefits derived like product 
improvement, cost reduction, product 
development or import substitution 

NA 

C) In case of imported technology 
(imported during the last 
Three years reckoned from 

The beginning of the financial year)- 
(i) The details of technology 

Imported: 

(ii) ‘The year of import 

(iii) | Whether the technology been 
Fully absorbed 

(iv) If not fully absorbed, areas 
Where absorption has not 
Taken place, and the reason 
There of 

NA 

D) The expenditure incurred on research 
and development 

NA 

re
? 

i



Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo: 

7 2023-24. 2022-23 
(i) Earnings : Nil Nil 
(ii)  Outgo . 

CIF Value of imports 
Rs, / Lakhs 5237 12643 

Travelling, Periodicals & Others 

Rs. / Lakhs 3 3 

For anon behalf of the board of directors 

: Hardev Singh Paramdeep Singh 
DIN: 00550781 DIN: 00550824 

(Managing Director) (Whole Time Director) 

Place: Rajganj, Jalpaiguri 

West Bengal - 735134 
Dated: 31.07.2024 



ANNEXURE-VI 

DECLARATION REGARDING AFFIRMATION OF CODE OF CONDUCT 

[Regulation 34, read with Schedule V(D), of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015] 

|, hereby declare that, all the members of the Board of Directors and Senior Management 

Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct, applicable to them as laid down 

by the Board of Directors in terms of Regulation 26(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the year ended 31 March, 2024. 

For and on behalf of the board of directors 

= 

Place: Rajganj, Jalpaiguri a woe \s \ ; 
West Bengal - 735134 = “4 

Dated: 31.07.2024 Hardev Singh Paramdeep Singh 

DIN: 00550781 DIN; 00550824 
(Managing Director) (Whole Time Director) 

™



ANNEXURE-VITI 

MANAGING DIRECTOR(MD) & CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER(CFO) CERTIFICATION 

[Issued in accordance with provisions of Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015] 

To, 

The Board of Directors, 

Teesta Agro Industries Ltd 

Mazabari Rajganj 

Jalpaiguri - 735134. 

Dear members of the Board, 

We, Hardev Singh, Managing Director and Anil Kumar Tripathy, Chief Financial Officer of Teesta 

Agro Industries Limited, to the best of our knowledge and belief, certify that: 

1. We have reviewed the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement of 

the Company and all the notes on accounts prepared for the year ended 31 March, 2024. 

2. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement er omit any material fact or 

contain statements that might be misleading; 

3. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in 

compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations, 

4, There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company 

during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the listed entity's code of conduct. 

5. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial 

reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company 

pertaining to financial reporting and have disclosed to the auditors and the audit committee, 

deficiencies in the design or operallon of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and 

the steps we have taken or proposes to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

6. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit committee, 

a. Significant changes, if any, in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 
aed 

eG Ung ts 



b, Significant changes in accounting policies, if any, during the year and that the same have been 
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and 

c. That there were no instances of significant fraud. 

S AG 

Hardev Singh Anil Kumar Tripathy 
DIN: 00550781 PAN: ABVPT4369F 

(Managing Director) (Chief Financial Officer) 

Place: Rajganj, Jalpaiguri 
West Bengal - 735134 
Dated: 31.07.2024 



ANNEXURE-IX 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

[pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (i) of the SEB! (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015] 

To, 

The Board of Directors, 

Teesta Agro Industries Ltd 

Mazabari Rajganj 

Jalpaiguri - 735134. 

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from 

the Directors of M/s. Teesta Agro Industries Limited having CIN- L24119WB1986PLC041245 and 

having registered office at Mazabari Rajganj Jalpaiguri - 735134 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the 

Company’), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in 

accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule VY Para-C Sub-clause 10(i) of the Securities 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
~ 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications [including 

Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mcea.gov.in] as considered 

necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers, we hereby certify that 

none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the period ended as on 31st 

March, 2024 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors 

of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any 

such other Statutory Authority. 

Details of Directors: 

Sr, | Name of the Directors Director Identification | Date of appointment in| 

No Number (DIN) Company 

L Mr. Hardev Singh 00550781 09/08/1989 

2. |Mr.Umesh Chandra Sahoo | 00550108 30/11/2002 7 

3. Mr. Paramdeep Singh | _ 00550824 30/04/2002 

4. | Mrs. Joginder Kaur 00550860 09/03/1990 | 



5: Mr. Inderdeep Singh _ “00879115 05/02/1998 

6.__| Ms. Rashi Saraf 10125808. | 01/08/2023 _ = 
He Ms. Baishakhi Maity | 07208089 01/06/2019 

8. | Mr. Subash Chandra 07273238 02/09/2015 
Samantaray 

9, Ms, Shiwangi Pandey 10206677 Q1/ 08/2023 

10. | Mr. Prem ShankarPandey 09091634 15/03/2021 

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/ continuity of every Director on the Board is the 

responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 

the basis of our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 

Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the 

affairs of the Company. 

Place: Kolkata 

Date: 31.07.2024 

For Rantu Das & Associates 

Company Secretaries 

Rantu Kumar Das 

Partner 

Membership No, F /8437 
CP No, 9671 

UDIN- F008437F000848925 
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Mantry & Associates 
Chartered Hecountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of Teesta Agro Industries Limited 

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

OPINION 

Mobile 94340 49438 

25/2, Electricity Sector Office Road, 
Milanpally, Siliguri -734005, Dist Darjeeling 

E-mail mantry. associates@yahoo co.in 

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS Financial Statements of Teesta Agro Industries 
Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, the 
Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and notes to 
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 

BASIS FOR OPINION 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the 
Companies Act,2013, as amended (the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and 
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state 
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its profit including other comprehensive 
income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

KEY AUDIT MATTERS 

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance with the 

Standards on Audting (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our 
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements' section of our report. We are independent of 
the Company in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of 
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules there under, and we 
have futfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
signifcance in our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2024. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Ind AS 
Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide 
a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit 
addressed the matter is provided in that context. 

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be 
communicated in our report. We have fulfilled the responsibilties described in the Auditor's 
responsibilities for the audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report, 

SILIGURI 
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including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of 
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the Ind AS Financial Statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the 
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion 
on the accompanying Ind AS Financial Statements. 

Revenue Recognition 

The key audit matter 
Revenue from sale of goods is 
recognised when control of the 
products being sold is transferred to 
the customer and when there are no 
longer any unfulfilled obligations. The 
performance obligations in the 
contracts are fufilled at the time of We tested the design, implementation and 

dispatch, delivery or upon formal operating effectiveness of management's general 
customer acceptance depending on IT controls and key application controls over the 
customer terms. Company's IT systems which govern revenue 

How the matter was addressed in our audit 

Our audit procedures included: 

The key audit matter 

We assessed the appropriateness of the revenue 
recognition accounting policies, including those 
relating to rebates and iscounts by comparing with 
applicable accounting standards. 

Provisions for taxation, litigation and other significant provisions 

The key judgement lies irn the 

estimation of provisions where they 
may differ from the future obligations. 
By nature, provision is difficult to 
estimate and includes many variables. 
Additionally, depending on timing, 
there is a risk that costs could be 
provided inappropriately that are not 
yet committed. 

We tested the design, implementation and 
operating effectiveness of controls Over the 

calculation of discounts and rebates. 

How the matter was addressed in our audit 

Our audit procedures included: Accrual for tax and other 
contingencies requires the 

Management to make judgements and 
estimates in relation to the issues and 
exposures arising from a range ofWe used our subject matter experts to assess the 
matters relating to direct tax, indirect value of material provisions in light of the nature of 
tax, claims, general legal proceedings, the exposures, applicable regulations and related 
environmental issues and other Correspondence with the authorities. 

We tested the effectiveness of controls around the 
recognition of provisions. 

judgements made by management which impacted 
their estimate of the provisions required, 

considering judgements previously made by the 
authorities in the relevant jurisdictions or any 

relevant opinions given by the Company's advisors 
and assessing whether there was an indication of 
management bias. 

We discussed the status in respect of significant 
provisions with the Company's internal tax and 
legal team. 

We performed retrospective review 
management judgements relating to accounting 
estimate included in the financial statement of prior 
year and compared with the outcome. 
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Assessment of contingent liabilities relating to litigations and claims 

The key audit matter 
The Company is periodically subject 
to challenges/scrutiny on range of 

How the matter was addressed in our audit 

Our audit procedures included: 

matters relating to direct tax, indirectWe tested the effectiveness of controls around the 
tax. recording and re-assessment of contingent 

liabilities. 
Assessment of contingent liabilitiesWe used our subject matter experts to assess the 
disclosure requires Management to value of material contingent liabilities in light of the 
make judgements and estimates in nature of exposures, applicable regulations and 
relation to the issues and exposures. related correspondence with the authorities. 
Whether the liability is inherently 
uncertain, the amounts involved are 
potentialy significant and the 

application of accounting standards to 

We discussed the status and potential exposures 
in respect of significant litigation and claims with the 
Company's internal legal team including their views 
on the likely outcome of each litigation and claim 

and the magnitude of potential exposure and 
sighted any relevant opinions given by the 
Company's advisors. 
" We assessed the adequacy of disclosures made. 
" We discussed the status in respect of significant 
provisions with the Company's internal tax and 
legal team. 

"We performed review of management judgements 
relating to accounting estimate included in the 
financial statement of prior year and compared with 
the outcome. 

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR'S 
REPORT THEREON 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the 
Ind AS Financial Statements and our auditors' report thereon. 

Our opinion on the Ind AS Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we 

do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude 
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that 

fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act') with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial 
statements that givea true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and 
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted 
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in India, including the Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the 
Act. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adeguate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing 

and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a 
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Ind AS Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative 
but to do so. 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting 
procesS. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of Ind AS Financial Statements 

Our obiectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
levei of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 

will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these Ind AS financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. 

" Obtaín an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)\(0) of the 
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has 
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

ASs, 
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting in preparation of Ind AS financial statements and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor's report to the related disclosures the Ind AS financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the 
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events 
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of such 
entities or business activities within the company to express an opinion on the Ind AS 
financial statements, of which we are the independent auditors. We are responsible for 
the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of financial information of such 
entities. For the other entity included in the Ind AS financial statements, which have 
been audited by other auditor, such other auditor remains responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the audit carried out by them. We remain solely 
responsible for our audit opinion. Our responsibilities in this regard are further 
described in the section titled 'Other Matters' in this audit report. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Ind AS Financial Statements that, 
individually or aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative 
materiality and qualitative factors in () planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating 
the results of our work; and () to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the 
financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us along with the consideration of audit 
report of the other auditor referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Company and such other 
entities incduded in the Ind AS financial statements of which we are the independent auditors 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant 
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 
Our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 

with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them 
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

We also performed procedures in accordance with the circular issued by the SEB0 under 
Regulation 33(8) of the Listing Regulations, as amended, to the extent applicable. 

ARTEREO DACCOU N 



Mrrentpiod and smI huetoethe boy audit situ4Aseabe hue mattere In ou

adimr'sgon unlessI as or ragvia ion pmludopubitdsul wueshout the matte•

when. inex\iernely rareclroornstanus.wboNnleTalamatter should not be

romrnunicateg In ou report became Ga adderse nsequencesQdoing so would

reasonably6expeotedto ouWeighthopublicIntarest4nef4sof such oommunlcatloo

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the 
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 

communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Other Matters 

We did not audit the financial statements of Chittorgarh Unit whose financial statements 
reflect total assets of Rs. 57.75 crores as at 31 March 2024, total revenues of Rs. 75.56 
crores for the year ended on that date, as considered in the Ind AS financial statements. 
These financial statements have been audited by other auditor whose report has been 
furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements, in so 
far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this unit, and our report 
in terms of section 143(3) of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid unit is based 
solely on the audit report of the other auditor. 

Our opinion on the Ind AS inancial statements, and our report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modfied in respect of the above matter with respect 
to our reliance on the work done and the report of the other auditor. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by 

the Central Government in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, and on the basis of such 
checks of the books and records of the company as we considered appropriate and 
according to the information and explanations given to us, we give in "Annexure A" a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

2. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

a. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best 

of our knowiedge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit; 

b. in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books: 

C. the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement 

dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account 

d. in our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. 
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e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting 
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate Report in �Annexure B". 

g. With respect to the other matters to tbe included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified 
as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) 
of the Act. 

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Comparnies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and 
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

ii. 

ii. 

iv. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the remuneration paid by the company to its directors in accordance with 
the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. 

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its 
financial position; 

The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or 
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts; and 

There were no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, 
no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been 
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or 
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or 
entity, including foreign entity (Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide 
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and 
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have 
been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity 
("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest 
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee., security or 
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 
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(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused 

us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11 (e). 
as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement; 

V. The company has not proposed or declared any dividend during the year. Hence this 

clause is not applicable. 

vi. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of 
account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) 
facility is applicable to the Company. Based on our examination which included test 

checks, the Company has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of 
account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has 
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. 

Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit 
trail feature being tampered with. 

Table showing the accounting software used by the Company 

Name of 
the 

Accounting 
Software 

Tally Prime 
Edit Log 

Records 

maintained 
(Books of 
Account) 

Journal 

CA. Manjari Mantry 
Partner 

entries, sub 
ledgers and 

general 

ledgers 

For Mantry & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

(Registration No. 315048E) 

Mana Mat 

Hosting 
Location 

Membership No. 307960 
UDIN: 24307960BKFVVT1090 

Company 
data center 

IAccounts 
department 

ARTERED ACCOU 
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In house or 
Outsourced Basse 

In House Tally 

Operating 
System 

Audit 
trail 

enabled 
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the hoading 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements' section of our report of even date) 

To the best of our infomation and according to the explanations provided to us by the 
Company and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of 
audit, we state that: 

() In respect of the Company's property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and 
intangibleassets: 

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation, of its Property, Plant & Equipment and right-of-use assets. 

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible 
assets. 

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of Property, Plant and 
Equipment and right of use assets and are physically verified in phased manner, which in 
our opinion is reasonable, having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its assets. 

According to the infomation and explanations given to us, no material discrepancy was 
noticed on such physical verification. 

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the company is the 
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), disclosed in the 
financial statements are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date. 

() The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right 
of-use assets) and intangible assets during the year. 

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company 
as at March 31, 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions 
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder. 

(üi) (a) In our opinion, physical verification of inventory has been conducted by the 
management at reasonable intervals. No material discrepancies of 10% or more in the 
aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed on such physical verification of Inventory. 

(b) Company has also been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of 5 crore, in 
aggregate, during the year, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. Stocks 
held in factory and Godowns along with Trade Receivable upto 90 days has been 
considered for calculation of eligible drawing power by the banks. Based on our examination 
quarterly statements filed by the company with such banks are in agreement with the books 

of account of the Company. 

(ü) (a) As per the information and explanations given to us, the Company has provided loans 

or provided advances in the nature of loans, or given guarantee, or provided securitly to any 
other entity. 

(A) The details of such loans or advances and guarantees or security to subsidiaries, 
Joint Ventures and Associates are as follows: 

ASSC 
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Aggregate amount 
granted/provided 
during the year 

Subsidiaries 
Joint Ventures 
Associates 

Balance Outstanding 
as at balance sheet 

date in respect of 
above cases 

Subsidiaries 
Joint Ventures 
Associates 

Aggregate 
granted/provided 
during the year 

Others 

amount 

Guarantees 

Others 

Guarantees 

(B) The details of such loans or advances and guarantees or security to parties other 
than subsidiary, joint ventures and associates are as follows: 

NIL 

Balance Outstanding NIL 
as at balance sheet 

date in respect of 
above cases 

Security 

NIL 

AND 

Security 

NIL 

Loans 

NIL 

Loans 

0.21 Lakhs 

Advances 

31.54 Lakhs 

Advances 

NIL 

NIL 

(b) During the year the investments made and the terms and Conditions of the grant of all 

loans to companies are not prejudicial to the Company's interest. 

(c) The Company has granted loans during the year to companies where the schedule of 
repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayment or 

receipts are regular. 

(d) There are no amounts of loans granted to companies which are overdue for more than 

ninety days. 

(e) There were no loans which had fallen due during the year, that have been renewed or 
extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same 

parties. 

() The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either 
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, 
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to 
report on clause 3(i)X) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans or prOvide any guarantees or securities to 
parties covered under Section 185 of the Act. Further, provisions of sections 186 of the 

SIL:GURI 
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Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans, investments, guarantees and security have beern 
complied with by the Company. 

(V) The Company, has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year and does 
not have any deemed deposits as at March 31, 2024 and therefore, the reporting under 

clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable. 

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the accounts and records maintained by the Company 
pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records 
prescribed under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Cost 
Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 as amended and we are of the opinion that prima facie, the 
prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, 
made detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are 

accurate and complete. 

(vii)(a) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is regular in 

depositing undisputed statutory dues with appropriate authorities including Goods and 
Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service 
Tax, Value Added Tax, Duty of Custom, Duty of Excise, Cess and other statutory dues as 
applicable to the company and that there are no undisputed statutory dues outstanding as 
on 31st March, 2024 for a period more than six months from the date they became payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, there are no dues of income tax, goods and service tax, customs duty, cess 
and any other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. 

vii) As per the information and explanations given to us, there were no transactions relating 
to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during 

the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). 

(ix) (a) As per the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted 
in the repayment of loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit 
procedures, the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial 

institution or other lender. 

(c) In our opinion and as per the information and explanations given to us term loans were 

applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed 
by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds 
raised on short term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term 

purposes by the Company. 

(e) As per the information and explanations given to us, company has no subsidiary, 
associate or joint venture entity therefore, reporting under clause 3(ix)\e) is not applicable. 

() The company has no subsidiary, associate or joint venture, therefore, reporting under 
clause 3(ix)() of the order not applicable. 

aASS. 
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() (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public 
offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of 

the Order is not applicable. 

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence 

reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xi) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the 

Management and based on our examination of the books and records of the Company and 

in accordance with generally accepted auditing practices in India, no case of fraud by the 

Company and no fraud on the Company has beern noticed or reported during the year. 

(b) Since no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during 

the period covered by our audit, therefore no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of 

the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies 

(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year. 

(c) As per the information and explanations given to us, no whistle blower complaints 

received by the Company during the year. 

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the 

Order is not applicable. 

(xiii) In our opinion all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 

177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the necessary details have 
been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting 

Standards. 
(xiv) (a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate 

with the size and the nature of its business. 

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the 
Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our 
audit procedures. The internal audit report did not contain any material adverse findings for it 

to be reported in our report. 

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
entered into any non-cash transactions with Directors or persons connected with him and as 
such the compliance of provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not 

applicable. 

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve 
Bank of India Act, 1934, hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a).(b) and (c) of the Order is 

not applicable. 

(b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the 

Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting 
under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xvi) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our 
audit and the immediately preceding financial year. 

SILICURI 
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(xvii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during tne 
year. 

(X0X) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial 
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based 
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our 

attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of 

the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the 

date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance 

sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the 

Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit 

report and we neither give any quarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due 

within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company 

as and when they fall due. 

(xx) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of other than 

ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be transferred to a fund 

specified in Schedule VIl the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance with second proviso 

to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the 

Order is not applicable for the year. 

(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects that are required to be 

transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 

of Companies Act. 

For Mantry & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

(Registration No. 315048E) 

Monjan Mat 
CA. Manjari Mantry 
Partner 

Membership No. 307960 
UDIN: 24307960BKEVVT1090 
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (0) or 
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Teesta Agro 
Industries Limited ("the Company") as of March 31. 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the 

Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 

financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by 

the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, 

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 

effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 

to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds 

and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 

preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 

financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 

Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards 

on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit 

of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we 

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 

assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was 

established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 

internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. 

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an 

understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a 
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness 

of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 

auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over 

financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with Indian 
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act. A company's internal 

financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) 
& ASS 
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pertain to the maintenance of records that. in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reTiedl 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company: (2) provide reasonabie 

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 

Statements in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under setion T30 O 

the Act, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made oniy 

dcoordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) 

Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 

acquisition, use, or disposition of the companv's assets that could have a material effect on 

the Ind AS financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 

misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 

evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are 

subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 

inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 

policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 

the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system 

over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 

operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal financial control over 

financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India. 

For Mantry & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

(Registration No. 315048E) 

Manjai Mat SILGURI 
CA. Manjari Mantry 
Partner 

NIRY & ASSOC 

Membership No. 307960 
UDIN: 24307960BKEVVT1090 

ERED ACCoUN 

Place: Siliguri 
Date: 12/06/2024 



BaJan¿a Sheet.ar at31st March. 2024

8articuJars

1. Assets

(1) Non curreni aMBlR

fa)PioperLy, p]Qnt and aqulpment andI ntangible assets

\›\ P\oPer\y, part and equipment

gi) IntangibJa assets

tlli} Capital work-in-progress

LO) Non-current investment

(c) Long term loafs and advances

(d) Other non-cr ent assets

(e› Inter branch baIan'ces

(2l Current assets

(a) Inventories

\'o) made ‹ece\vzib\es

(cl Casn and cash equivalents

(dj Short-term loans and advances

Rei Sh•art-term tñ/estmenm

(I} Other Current asseb

Total

Il. EQUIWAND LIABILFFIES

{1) Sha/eholdehs Funds

(à) Share Cagita‹

(b) Resarves and SUrplus

(2) Nott•Current Liabilities

la} Long-term borrowings

(b)Deferred tax IlabillfJes (Net)

(c) Long térm provisiens.

(3) Curre!1t Liabilities

(ai Snort-term borrowings

{b\T sde payab\es

{c Other Current Jiabilitiés

(d) Shoft-term pr0vislens

tâ*al

Corporate Information

Significent accounting poliüies& Other explanatory niles

The Notes ref+rred tó above are al Integral part oTt

Pôr and on öehaJf of

MANTRY& ASSOCIATES

Chart+ra Abc untanfs

Firrn Reglst/ation No.315048E

CA. MANJARI MANTRY

Panner

Memhershlp No. 307960

Sillguri, 12th lune, 2024

{Rs in Lakh}

Note As at31srMars, êsa 31st tzaron,

ND 2024 2023

3

7

8

10

1?

14

15

16

17

1J

atements

rprand

Mesa

.6282

26

145

6026

235?

10Ô0

1494

0

17442

5S7

10521

431

346

.879

4 162

o^0'4

20

1 7442

0.00

ball of.the Boarcl of oireciôrs

AgroI ries KJrrjited

ardev

MBnaglng Oiractor

Abhina kumar Pandey

Üomp'any Secret8Ty

5020

2831

'l24S

16G1

BQO

f

?033

5'2Ñ7

7d[

îF686



SLatement.of Prof|t e'nd Los's for the y.ear enüèd 31st MärûlJ, 2D24

J. Revenue from operations

Il, Other ïncoma

llt. Tolal lncome (I +ll)

V Expenses

CIDSt of raw mäteñal4 consurned

For theyear Fsr the year

Note No enôedÈ Est enùed3 st

March. 2024 March, Zu823

16

19

20

Changes in inventories of finlshed goods.'work-In-prrigress and Stoch- 21

PackinL| mBterials.& stores consum.ed 22

Emplo.yee benefits expense 23

Financial costs 24

Degr'eciatiön and amortization expense

Other exps»ses

Total Expense.s

V. Profil before excaptional& axtFElDFdinary items and tax

VI. E'xcepäonal Jterns

VII. F‹oflt before tax

VIII. Tab 'expençe!

{1) Current iax

{2) DBforred tax

t3) Earller yeàr tax

Profii(Loss) from the parid from coritinulng öperatiôtis

IX. Appropriation 1ferñs

X. Profi#Loss) for the year c/flo Balance Sheet

XI Basic8 Diluted Ea'rning per equify shane:

1} Before Exceptional items

(2)After Exceptlonal Item.s

Corporate Information

Significant accountlng pollcles& otrjer explanatory n0teS

The Notes referred to sbove arean integral part of the financial statements.

CA. MO NJARI MANTR‘Y

Partner

Membership No, 307960

Siligur|, 12Lh June. 2024

@‘” ’"”* ForanU

2

l63ld

155

16473

11532

168

030

*GB

10.1

2a06

°I 5966

U

*07

-85

- 1

” 0

351

0

3G1

6’.4*

6.46

Cf Teesta Aùfrp In tries Limited

Harde ng

28

102Ÿ

102*

263

t 3.20

If of Ihè Boarrï of' Dlre 're

Päranideep Singh

Director

Abhinàv KumarPans

Company Secretary



P•op'<rty, p.ant and et]u•pm=.nt and Ir.lni'iaible assets

3 Property pI*nt and equIpm'e:4t

A. SI t,I UR I. W.B:

Larjd (Freehold)

Bulldings

Planl& Mach|nery

Elec\rical InssI!ation

Fumhura.& Fixture

OfTice Equipment

Tractor

Vehir:las

Fle'::1ricai ins. !latinn

F amihJre& Fixture

Office Equipment

is +Lakh.›

THUSS DUCK D PPEG ImTI CN N t 1 b L'Uwn

Original Admit ons Sale.’Adj. Ur!ginel tJekreciaron For \he SaIa'Adj. Uepr<aial on is At 3TsL As AI J1st

Cost as. ort Dury During Castas ori upto year Lnur1ng upto March.2â24 IVtarcfi.2023

31.03.20a theyeer they*ar 31 03.202a 31 'Q3.20*3 The year °1 0s 2024

C CFTITTDRGARH RAP.

Land

Building

Plant& Machinery

Lab Equipment

Pall\Jtion Control Equi

FMrftiturc& Fixture

Othar Equipments

COFilpufer

Vehic|es

fylotar cycle& Car

Total

8^ DC 0 534 C Q d 0 634

36d 2a .101 228s us3 <6 20 1008 1277

2240 114 0 235l2 1471 35 0 15D6 849

1§7 0 0 147 143 0 O \48 4

78 0 ? 79 71 1 0 72 7

*6 1 0 37 33 1 d 34 *

11 0 0 11 4 1 0 ¿ 6

2D7 148 0 ?55 1u0 , 28 0 178 17T

1378 0 0 1378

175 0 :0 17B

71 0 0 71

92 0 0 92

T? 0 0 t3

12 0 0 12

z o o g›
$87 132 0 \11.9

‹1s9 1ég a tzas
9 0 0 9

0 2 0 2

19 1 0 20

S 0 0 2

6 3 0 10

0 204

0 â 0

29 3 0

Sfif 3 0

.67 0 0

12 0 0

11 0 0

C 0

1^.S S3

54C 78

6 1

C 0

fi7

3

386 D 2€iG

0

20

32

b0

12

11

0

618

1;

8G

1378

147

11

1

1

B7

2

T 17

6282

584

\377

76g

4

7

1378

14$

1d

5

1

1

61g

14$



4.

Sues OfIpdian Bank

SB|MldCap -und

9B| Dvernlte hand RegiJIar Gfowlfi

Loans and Advances

0\her aavan¢es

Advance paid In Grat¢lty Fund

TDS& Advance. lncom• tax

6. OIl1er non- current Assets

Depesit wuft Government Arfthonties

Other Deposits

InvenDries

Raw materla[s

Raw mpter|a|s in Cmnsit

Tradad Goods

Finehed goods.

Consumable StoreS

Traoe receivabk°s

Urisecured, Con'sid+•red good

’Not Due

Outstanding foFa pariod:

Less than6 months

@ fPpPjIhs-1 year

1 —2 years

2 -3 years

more than4 years

9 Cash and cash equivalents

20

38

20 0

0

Lorts Term Short term

315 2024 3 204? 313 2424 1*.3 20 3.

Q D 0

37 3B 47

4g 40 t4P4

.2546

60JS
.

219

2V7

955

10. Othfif Current Assets

lnterestoocrued on NS-C and FD 9

0

b0 £i

BOO

4b06

1681

28}4

470

76

3147

320

5D7

z833

1242

f



11.

1t .1

\1.2

a)

b)

Share D,apllal

Au\horised

80.o0.80O Etjully fitlares

2D.00,000. 8°4 Oumulatlva Preferen‹:e 8hares

lasuad. Subsulbed& Paid up

56,10.000 Equtty.Shares

L'es Aüotmen\ money inarrear

Rn.\0 earl' 8ö0.00 800.00

Rs.10 each 200.00 200.00 '

1000.00 000.00

56i 00

4.DO

Ü61 00

SEO

Terms,RighB, Preferances& Restrlctlans atlztched to Sna/us

Tha comq'any prpsenlty han enly one c]ass plequig shans havir9 par value ôf Rs.10/- por sharo Earh sfiare h•

USB CQ ïpany haa not altc'tad any equity share>.for cQnsideratlon other than Cash, bonus shpres, nor fiava any sh.

Reconcl1iation ef Shares outstanding atthe beginning and at the gnd of the reportinjj period

3 T•tMarch 202 8^+t Ma c* 7023

Equliy Shares. of Rs. t0/- euch NumLiat ”Re. In Lakh Nunlbe ”Rs. In Lat‹h

At lhe boglnning of je period 561ßOOD:00 üG1 00 5610000.04 561.00

lssucd and allo\ed during tha period 0.0g +J.00 0 ü0 0..00

OuU'ar\dlng dlthe end of ihe p'eri'Dd ScsuId dR s610.000,00 g61 00. 5610000.üß 661.Of}

AllDtmenl money In arrear 4403a.00 4.0d 44920.00 4.00

Ctu iandlng at we and of the penori aucJaIIy is 5566070.d0 557 U0 S6E5070.0d 567 DO

11.4 Details öf spar=.hoIders fiolding müre tlJan G% shares in the coiTtpany

Eqully shares of Rs.10 each fully pald up

Hardev Singh

Joglrtdor Zur

11.5 Sharoholdlng Pf Premoteis as St31«I March 2024

Shares held by Prgrno[erG atU e end of the vear

S NO . %onoterNeme

4 - Hardev5lngh

2 - Jo nde›Kuur

31st March 20Z8 3^stM*rü1 2023

MLtmbm. "L pf| loldirtg Number f H,oldlnrt

1592190.00 2a.sg 1e›zs00 55 16 77

587600.00 10.47 587600.00 1F d7

% oftu\a! '*° CJlanüa

Nõ. ofShares _sha eq dm Ing 'me yesr

1592190.00 2R.36 0.00

5B7b00.0D 10.47 0,ó0

15G1DQ.00 2:76 F.00 '

149000.00 2.66 0.L'O

As per records et the company, Including ks regster of shereho]dars/members alid other 4ec|arations rEce:\reo fro

Tho Board ofDimctors has prop0seda dividend ot 75R forfully paid up shares forlie year 2023-24.

1L fte'yerve8 and Sürplu

a} Capltal Reserve

Balance as par last financ&I staloments

Abd; Output VAT Rem| .on

b)Cspitel Redemptlon Resen'a

Balance as per Jast rnanclaJ slatements

E) Aha Fa PFA I1^ iUTTI & lOJd'ITt

Balar›ca ab par |ast fir anco| statarrtzirlf.

AJß Premium on issoo of EctUlty sharss

31.3.2&24 II3 20c3

7iiR7

0
254’r

111

4b

46

0

111

48



i4

16’.

d) General Reseye

Balance as per last financJel statements

Aod.amount transferred horn surpJus o!ance in tfje stalem'°nt af profil and loss

Clesi.ng ba1an

e Profit& Loes Acœunt

B8l8rlc'e as per last financiùl staternents

Profit fôr Ihc year

Lesñ: Ap fcgriations

Dlvldend laid

D:vidund distribution tax

Diviñend/Dividend Tax of earlier Ye'ar

Tran6fer ïo general resetve

C\osing &aiar\üe

Total

13 LDng Tertrl Bcrrowings

5-ecured

Term Loan from HOFC 8a»8.

U Osecured

From Directors

From Oth<°rs

10.52I

U

10

-1?9

0

46Z

l'iJ50

Note: Cu.sent rnat irities !sa pàr1 of Curreill fiaü\Iitié.s.

TUlnl prev] IiDÚS

15. Shsrt Term Borròe|ngs

Se ureü Loan Fram Ba k

O lI1.Mrs

Clüsing úaJance

D

431

4.32

ú3?

0

4 5 1

10 S Ú

0 O C

0

l7

8

5

0

0

0

1S96

Secur¢d IOaús are fDr 'ork‹ng capital frpm consor'!um óf Banks, and ara ser.mer' by joirtt |1ypofhsca'iori Chcrge or

Trade P+yeb|w

MotOue

Less !hanI ycar

483

1 G2

0

fi287



17 Other CurrentL iabl1stias6 Provisions

Creditors-Capitol Assets

Employees Dues

'Other LiabilifJes

Custome'rs Dues

18 devenue front oparations

Sg|es

/QV £ 5 M È'SÏD}

19

2ij.

to.et«st tao. \‹sm aany.

Diviaend Reed.

Sfiorl Term Cap'?l Main

Long Turm Cap|ta| Gain

bent, Leava& License Fee

Sunr'ry racaiqt (netJ

Inreres' from Jncoire Tax Refu!1d

Pfcfi' on s3Ie if F|xed A•-sets

Lost etniaferials consurne‹J

Purçhase

F›eIghllnva«ü

Le se C IGH IFIg 5tOCk

21. Change ilI nventDFies

F i:njsh'=d Boo ds

Öpenirig Stösk.

Le ss Closing S'ock

Add/{Less) Valuaîïon |n +xcise duty on

Stock: of fin1shed Goeüs

Pafiîurg materials& Star-°s consumed

£ina›tceLot

hflerr| to Ba Us

Ohws

51* 2024 3: 0.2C'23

Rs 'n Lake’ Rs in Lakh $s In Lakh Ps iri Lab:

9761

S557

28

l8

3222

303ᵉ

5B0

5b

1G3\B

15fi

11532

1.01

0

0

UI

22733

1805

8347

7X

la

38

249fi0

öfi3



25. OU.érVxpenses

Rem

ñaTes&Ts^es

Other Manufacturing Expenses

Repaifs 8Igd fV| Qjfl@lñaWe

BuddJn_s

Plant.and Machinéry

Olfiers

Markgti'ng/publiclty

Dealers M8rgln

Carrlage Outward

Professional 8.AudIt Faes

Baok Chaf,ges

Trov I||f@ Exp6nseS

Offip Maintenance ExpotlSes

Welch& W@rd Offense

htl6cslter'aous ñ/pensea

.CSRE xponsas

26 Exceptional It+ms

16

25

42

4fi8

203

4S.

199

43

2406

0

1g

14

Eds

229

113

10

T5

t75

825

s2

190

1 1?

13

45

12

0



2s prevlous years figures have been regruopcd/tecasted wherevar necessary.

As per our report of even date

For and on behalf of

MAN'£RY& ASSOCIATES

Oflartercd Acoountants

Firm Registration No.315O48E .'” .- .'. — ..

CA,. IVIANJARI MANTRY

Partner

Msmbęrśh'ip No. 3U7960

Sii•9uri,1 2tn Jun'e, 2024

Forano on behalf ol the Board ofDirectors

of Teesta Agro Industrie mi£9D

Hardev' Singh

ańaging. OlreMor

I

ararndeep Slngh

Silisuri. 12łh June, 2024



CASH FLOWSTATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENOED 31STMAR.CH. 2024

Cssh F.low from Operating Ac£jyjtie9

Nel profit/(Jossj before lax and

Extraordinary |tems

AJJusted for

Depreciafiun

Inle‹est Roceiv'ed (Net)

Dividen'd Income

Shert Term Capital Gain

Long Terrrt Capital G*‹\

Rent, Leave& License Fee Receipt

operating Frofit before changes

in Working Capital!

AdJusimenis for

Trade and otM+r ceiv'ables

|nv+ntori s

Trade Payab\e

Gash Genarsted from Operations

Interest Paid

Dire'ct Taxes Pald

Nat CaSh front operating: ctivities

cash riov from inves«g Ac‹i iiies

Addi[jQfT to Propertj/, filant and eqiJlpmcnt

5aJa Proceeds of Property, plant and eg Iptnent

It\terest Rec-=Iv6

Sho'rt Ter‹i Ga'pit3I Gai0

L0•9 Tefrn GapztaT Gain

Rune Leaye 8.Loeise Fo* Recent

7’3

-1

-15

-1£

0

—72

61B

80B

-1409

—101

-85

15

1

For‹he

yearended

31.32024

507

215

722

-341

21'3

.0

-1610

0

14

0

1

For the

year anded

31.3.20?S

2C8

1291

-531

-S38

422

—1b04



GASH FLOW STATEMENT FDRTHE YEAR ENDEO 31ST MARCH, 2024

Btough\ Forward

Cash Fog from Flna cig Act vitlee’

Proceeds from Stare Igsue

Incraasa.°(Dacraase) In CC, Loan& Vehicle Loan

Dividend Paid

Tax on Divfdand

1nIer Branch Balances

Proceeds from Investments

get cash useé in Financing Acfiy*ea

Nelincrease in Cash and Cash EqufvaJent

{A*B*C)

Gash and.Cash Eguiualent (Opening Balanced

Cesh and Cash Equivalent (Ciesing Balanoo

e =

Siliguri,
0
’* - lv Singh

12th June. 2024 N'tanaging Director

AiidllDfs’ CeRficate

0

0

0

8Q0

124’0

1000

Forthe

3J.3.2024

213

-457

-245

0

16/2

-1*9

0

0

0

914

1245

Foranden beha|f of Board of Directors

of To a Ay lnciustries Limited

for the

year anded

31.3.2023

-11G2

Param¢teep Singh Ash nav Kumar Pandey

Dir2¢t0r CompBny Secri=tary

1514

331

The aboye Cash Now Statement hac been compiled from and is based on theaudjtaJ accounts of Teesta

Agr0| ndustries Limited for the year ended 31st March, 2024 reported by as on f2tf\ June, 2024. According •o

the information and explanations grven the aforesaid Cash Flow Statement has been prapared pur'gMBf1t to

ctause 32 ofthe Listing Agreement with Stock Exchanges and thereallocation required for the purpose are as

maoe bytheCompany.

Si|lguri.

Dale! T2th June. 2024

Forand. on behalf of

MANTRY& ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Flrm Registration No.315O48E

CA MANJARI CTRL

Partner

Membershlp hlo. 307960



Notes forming part of the Financial Statements fortheyear ended 31“ March, 2024

TT in 1. a›:In\

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The company isa pub1ic Ilsted compay domiciled in India and is incorporated under

the provisions of the. Companies Act applicable |n India, Its sharas are listed an The

Bombay Stock Exchange of India. The regtsleted office of the company is located at

Mazabari, PQ-Rajganj, Dist.-Jalpaiguri, n'est Bengal. PIN-735134.

The Company i9 prlnclpally .engaged in the business of manufacturing and mar ket'ng

Fertilizers.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLlCiEs

2.1 Basis of preparation:

The financlal staterrlenjs of the company Rav.e been prepared iM accordance wit?'. Indiar

Account[rug Standards (Ind AS) on accrual basi9 and unñ=r the hister cal ccsl

convantipn pursuant to section T 33 of the Companies Act, 2013 read wiih ru|B3 If

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (lndiat'i

Accountng S*aAa‹ds} Ammmded R\\\as, 20\6.

2.2 Use ofe.stimates:

The greparatiön of financial stàtërneüts roqulres man*9•^Tïant ts make est ates ancl

assumptions that affect the reported amounls ofasse!s and Ilablfities and dlsc1osuru cl

CÔ11tl09BJ1t IÏabilities at tha dste of the financià| staternenls and the results of operations

during the reporting period. AlIt\Ough thèse 6st'mates are baseô upon mañagemenl's

best knowledge of Ourrant events and actions, aütual results uôold diWer from thèse°

astimates. Difference between lhe actual results and are recog iseù ir lliu

pe.riod in whïch the resuiis arc knowït/ materialized.

2.3 Current versus nonaurront classiflcation:

Any asset or ïiabillty Is clas4ified as current If it satisfiea any cf the follovving condïtioris

(i) the asset/iiability is expectad to be realized,’settIed iri the Company's normal

O@¢0ttÚg CgCl9;

(I) The asset is intended ?or sa'e or cons'u iï•ptión;

(liï) The asset/|iabllity. is helú primarily fer tne pUrpose gftrading;

‹ïv The asset/iiabi|ity ‹s expocted to be realized/sett1ed wJlhin twelve nionths aftsr U:e

reporting pe.riGd;

{v) The asset i6 Oash orcssh equlvalent uniess it is restricted fròm lzEiFtÇ EXfiÚ2Plgfid Of

used tosattlea |iabili\y for atleast twelve nicn\hs afier lhe reporting date

(vi) In the casè. òf Ijabillty, the Company does nóthaye an uncolidilional right tp d4èr

settlement of the IiabiJity for at least twelve months altes the reportlng dcte.

Alt other.assets and liabilities are classified as not-current asse!s and liabilitles,

Daferred Law assets and fiahllities ars classified as non-current assets apd liabilities.

For the purpòse of rurren1/non-c rrent class-iflcat|on cf assets and I•abiI\ties, he

company has assertained ils nom mal uparatfng. CÏgC[e d£ tivel va m sFI'••.ü Tlslfi lS ÜòS0(J C"’

.' '.1Ï•t. .
z’ • . ’



the nature of services and the= lime between lheacquisition of assets or inventories for

process|ng and their realization |n cash artd Cd9h ecuivalents

2.4 Property, ptant and equłpment:

plant& equiprrjent (PPE) and capital work inprogre$s gre stated al cost less

accumHiated d.epruciatien and ąccumulated impairmenł losses if an.y. Cost compr'ses

the purchase price including duties ana other rion ref‹vndable taxes Nr "dzies Llii +!z!.I v’

attributadla cosl ul bririging the assets to its working condition. bcrrowing cost° if

caplta1lzaŁion criteria are met and Indirect co st epecifically atbibu'abie tó ccnstructiol al

a proje4 or to tle a¢qi isition ofa fixed asset.

Depreciation un PPE i5 cal Ubted using tri+ straight-hnsn ethod to allocate their rust

net of lheir resldual values. over their rstil'natacl \ seful lives as ner sc\ añHle I .I”

Companies A.cl, zo13

Losses ar›sing frôm the retirement of, and gains or fosses arising f‹öm disposal of PPE

ara recogn1zad In the Statement ofProft and Less.

Impairment ofAsset:

An assdt is treataI as impaired when the. carrying cost if II ie sail ie exceeds I!.<

recoverab1e amount. An Impairment is «harged to tile Protit ana Loss Account in I1e

year in which an asset is Identified as impaired. The impairment loss recognized in prior

accounting period is revefsed Jf thefe has been a change in the estimate at |he

recoverable amount.

2.6 Inventories: *

Inventories are valited at cost.

(a) Inve‹ tories of stores& shares and pacir|ng materials are valued at FIFO basis.

(b) lVlajor raw. materials are falled atcost on FIFO ba6iG; Raw materials for NF'K are

valUed at average cost price

Finished goods arevalued at lower. of cost and net realisab1e value.

Cost includes cast of purchase, duties, taxes and all .other costs incurred i/° brinkinn II ie

inventories to their present location.

2.7 Revenue Recagnition:

ay Sales exclusive of Excise Duty, VAT and GST are: recognised as revenue on

dispatches.

b) Dividend income on inuastments is amounted for hell the muhl iu receive r:' i*

payment Is estahlls! ed.

ñ) Intérést interna is accounted on time proportion basis taking into aoc0Hnt thea mo:int

outstanding arjd applicable interest ra!e.

ñ” ! nconia from rent mom Property iâ recognized wllan the righl tor eceive the paynielJl

is established

2.8 Subsidy: , -



2. 14

Subsidy redeivable from Government on sale of S.S.P.& G.S.S.P.F ertilizei’ Is Included

in income and recognised on accrual basis. Where thegrant or subsidy relates to an

as set, it's valua is deducted In arrivlng at the.carrying amount oftherelated asset.

2.9 Foreign currency Transactlons:

T ransactions in foreign c0rrencies are recorded at the rates of exchange prevs›Iing on

the dates when the. relevant transsctions take plane; .assets and Iiabi1ities va|uec at

cantract/yearend rate and resul\änl loss or gain |s accounted för in the profit and lass

account,

2.10 lnvesfrrienls:

Long term Investm0nts are stated at cost and provision for ¢Jiicinullon Is made. if such

diminution Is other than temporary in nature. ConsidBFing The yeaf end ratos. no

diminution is thére In the value of long term invesrvents. Short term investments are

staté¢i at cost as there is no diminution in yearGnd. value.

2.11 Borrowing costs:

Borrowing Cost relatlng to (i) funds borrow+d For acquisition/corlstructiori of q\Jalif’y: .'z

assei(s are capitalized Mp (o tha date the assela. are put ip use, and {ii) funds borrowed

forother purposes are cl\arged. to Profit and Loss Account.

2.12 Tax Liability-

Tax liability Js estimated considerlng the provislons of the lncome Tax Act, 1S6\

Deferrcd fair jù recognized on timing diffcrence, bà ng the differ'nce between IaXab!e

income and accounting inconie that originale in one period and are capab1o of re.versai

in one or more .suUsaquent periodo. On prudent basis, DeFèrreó tax asse.t is recò nizcò

and carried forward only whon thare isa reasonabls certsiaty that sufficient future

taxabie income will be available against which such déferred tox assets can be fealìzed.

2.13 Empioyeo Benefits:

Contributions to Provident fund ând Supérannuallén Fund, \'vhicLi are clefinsrJ

contribution schemes are. made toa government administered Provldenl Fund and to

recognized trust raspactively and are charged to the Profit and Loss account as

incurred. The company has no further obligations beyond its contributions ie these

funds.

Provision for gratuity,undera LIC Bdfninistsred funci, and leave encashllient. whloh are

in the nature of defined benefit plans, are prcvtded based on actuarial valuation based

on projected unit credit method, as:at the baJance shset date.

Provisions, contingent liabilities an.d contiMgont assets:

Provisions involving substantia1 degree of estimation in measurement are recognlzed

when there is.a present obligation asa result of past events and It is possible that \hcte

will be an outflow of resources. Contingent |iab|f ties are not recogn ed but are



disclos=d In notes. C.ontingent assets are neither recognized nor disc1osed In 1h+

financial s1ateinerits.

Other Explanatory notes and Information

\5 Bundry Debtors and ãOVBrìces (considered good) include certain overdue debts/ cld

advances aggregatlng to Ÿ1či ŁPrev‹ous Year US.) forwhich necessaiy steps are

being taken for rea1|sation and as such no provision there agaìnst is cõnsìdered

necessary in theee accounts.

2 17

2.16 balances of cenain Sundry Debtors, Sundry Creditors, Leonsa t«J Advances arc

Other Llablllties are in pro less ot ccnlirmalion/reconclllatiutl The sha-: nqemt rel is of

lhe Opinion What adjustment if any ar-sing out oî sucn i'ecut cîłiatiun wõuld nut Ue

materia|.

?.18

Minimum Alternate Tax Credìt is recognized as an ass.et only to the extent there is

C0nvins|ng evidence that the Co»içanÿ ńil| ț›ay normal h cone. I”.ax dLirińg 'n*

sșecifie.d period

2.łg

In the opinion of the Board the Current Assets. Loans and advances appoaring in the

company's balančc sheet 0s at the yearend would have value on realization In the

normal course of business at least equal is the tespeełive amounts atwhich they are

stated in the balønc-e sheet.

Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Davelcpmentf ct. ž006, certalri

dlsclösures. are iequlred łò be made relating to micro, small anJ rnèdium entemrîses

but the infcrrr atlon is not available

2Æ0 (a) Estimated amount of Capital Conii itłcents net of advances as at 31.03.*0*•1

and Not provided for is€ 00 (Pre'viõus year* 2õ0).

{b) Contingent Liabilities

(No! provided for) In respect oł’! -

- Łetter of Credit

- BBnk Guarantees

1073-24 2022.23

1116 ł 035

56 37

2.21 C:or^sMmplion õf raw materials includes foreign exchange loss of TO (Pre\’ious yeai

loss of V0)

2.22 Retiremerit Benefitś

Defined Benefits Plan

Thë. companÿ haš subscribed țo group gratulțÿ pulley with lieu Li' | risut ai cu

C urporation of| fidia to co ver its. |›abiIity towards emplüÿDCa’gr atu t y. Gratuity list.|ity

has been actuarialİy aalCulafed and lh.e sam.e has bèën provided for as ön the date õ!

Balance l2heet. Sułcnłaiy of Gratuity P.lan Is given below:- tÿ,Ț, ›.-,



a. Assumptions | *.1.03:2024 31.03.2023

Discount Ram T.1 '/ r.3O?•

Rate ofincrease inoompensalion levels 6’ñ 6°6

Rate ofReturri gn Plan Aseets 7.10% 7.3.0%

Expected Average remaining worHIng 13.US J4

Lives of.employees (years)

b. Reconciliation of.Openlng& Closing 3 ,03.?024 ñ",U3:2023

Ba1anoes ifthe present v.alue of defined

benafJt obligation

Present Vatue DIOb\\ga\ton as a\ the Do

Beginning DL the .year

Interest East 5

Cunenl:6ervicu Cost S

Banefits paid (23}

Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations 2

Present value of Obligation as at the '26

End ni the.year

3

b

(2"g)

(8j

1 03

c. F:econciïïation oF Openlng& Ctosl»o 31,03.20Z4 ü1.f.3.2C23

Balances of fair ya|ue ofplan assetis

Plan as6ofs at the beginning ôf the year 94

Expected ïeium on plan assets C

AduaIConiNany celuihuLons iS •

Banefits p9id (2J)

Aç!varlu| g8lr1/(jess} on plan aasats (0)

Plan asseJs atthe ëïid of th= yoar 68

109

7

(0)

d. Net asset/liability reccgnized inthe 31.03.Ü.024 31.03.2023

balance sheer

Cuifer'tL igbillty (Afnoun( due within one 4

year)

Nw Cv\rrsnt Liabi\\iy tArriount due over 2

ohe year)

Present Value. of Obilgailon as at the 96

End of the year

OfF\/DI GB 0 Plan a.s»ets as at the enJ ol b6

lhs year

Net bssey(LIabiIIiy) F'•ecOgn!zed in

i 6a.lance Sheet

(8)

{8)

82

103

e.C.ompoi\ents of erîjp1oyer expenses for 31.03.2024 31.n3.2023

the yëar



Current Se.rvice Cósi

Pasl Service Cost

I ñterest Cost B

Expected Return eñ Plan Assets (6)

› Net aCuarial (gain /’ less recognized in 2

the year

E ypenses Recognized in the statement \0

of Prolitg Less Account

6

(7)

1

The company extends the benefit of leave encashnsent to its employees while in servic-e

Laave encashruent benefits are aocounla-¢i for on the basis of actual valualioiJ as at yaar

end.

DefinedC entributio la

fionlriAulion tu DeflnedC ontrlbutlon F'lan l.e. contribution io Providei il Fund anioui1llri¿ io

T22 (Pr-•viotJs year T21) ha» been reñoanized as expenses in the year anct charged lo

revem account. These. contr.buttons are made tothefund admlnisterad and managec!

sy Regional Provident FLlnd Commissioners.

^.É8 úegmeht In{ofnia(on

”I he business segments havs been identifieò on the basis óf the produïts manrifac!u•ect

hy theCompany i.e. FertilisersB Sulphurlc Acid. Ma\nly SulphuricA cid is captively us ri

for production of I2SP. Tl a company ïs managed organisaliona1l.y as ohe unified entit\',

hence there ase no separate geographioal seg ments.

Segment Revenue

Fertiliser

Sulphuti* ACid

Total Segment Reveriue.

Less: IterSegment Revenue

NetSa!es/lncorne from Oparations

Segu t Proflt/tLoss) before tax and lnterus•

F ertiiiser

Sulph rie Acid

t o'aI

Add:

YeaT Enoed YeGr Krw=J

Marcie3 1, 2G24 K'1arch3 1, 202a

1591g

1484

17362

13J0

16032

(i) T f adlng Rrvenua& E xçendlfure: fNet) 0

(ii) Net Inicres\ Expense{-)/ Income (!) (73)

(iii) Unallocatud Ravunue 8‹ Expendlturc (Net) 412

Met Profe\/\Loss) trom Ordinary Áütivitla.s 507

*apttal Emp]oyed

(Segment Aesets — Segment Liabitrties›

Fertiliser 7283

Z0"83

í6’9T

?2670

1Ü6?

0983

T73

(14)

T59

852S



! SuJphurlc Acid

Total

Capital Expendlture

Depi'eclation fo.r the period (Net)

36b2

" 1og4s

472

246

Z.24 Lteferred Tax Accuunllng:-

Carrying amgunt ofdeferred lax assets aricl deferred tax liabiiilim< as given iTt| qd gu

12 has baen reviewed as on 31“ Ntarcl\ 2024 Defefred tax assets and IIabi:it les aic

measured atthepresent preyailihg US rate. Net deferred tax |iabiI.t for ihe year* G’I

has been recognized in the Profit and Loss Account fortheyear.

Z.25 Management has avaluateo value in use of its feed assets. current acsete aid

Eurret liabilities Basad on the pasl history and track records of \fie sum[many lfas

assessed the nsx ol default by tnc customer and expects ::=.= crecil less to n'=.

insignlflcanL On evaluation. management is of the. coinion !hal lheie J> iva

impairment of the Compeny's assets as on 31”' March, 2024 and hence fio proyls ut1

is required.

2.26 Re.lated Party Disclosures

P.arty

Burial

No.

Mr. i—tales oleh, Managing Director Key management personnel

2. Mr. U.C. Sahoo, Exec itlve Direñlor -Do—

Mrs. Joglnder Kaur, Director -No-

ir.I nderdeep Singh.Director -Go-

JVtr. Paramdaep' King h. DireCa.r -Do'-

6. Mr. A.K. Tnpathy, CFO —DO-

Mr.Abhinab Kr.P aridey, Co. Seorstâry -Do-

Cama infra Limited Associated Com pany

HSB Leasing Llmited Associated Cqrfl pany

T ransacTion with the related parties:

Name cfthepart.y Natura of Transaction during the YeareiW Ariornt

year balaiJce

iVlr. HaFd8v Singh Ramuneratiot NJI

Mr U. ñ. Sahoo Remuneration& PF sontribUtJOrl N il

Ivtr. Paramdeep Singh - de - TJi|

M Inderdeep Singh - do — Ni!

MF, A, K. Tripathy — do — Nil

MI’. Abhinab Kr.Pandey Remunei alluii 0

Cam a Infra Limited Rent receipt ff'om property 21

H SU Leasing Limi(ed Hira Purchase Loan+ I ntorest +°0

t Mr. Hardev Singh Unsecurcct Loan ft

31

14

23

100



Related parties are idenlifleci by ths manngenient. The remunerahon ofMr Pararr. eel

Singh as stated abo've is excłuding gratHity fHnąeń through LIC foi wi \Ich jrI i' iuulioi te°

not sepatately iden1Jfied,

2.27 Earnings Per Share:

Year ended on 31’ March

Profit after tax but before aon-rer:urring items

Profit.after tax avalable forequity shareholciors

Weiqhtofl averagń nutrJfier of eqyity shares

Bas . iiuted earn ings per share Delors icon-

recurring items. (Face= va1ue ofshoro T10/- each)

Basic& dllrited earnings per share after non-

r zcurring items (Face value of Share 10.+ :eacli)

6.49

Z78 AuJitofs Fees and Expenses \ns}ude remuneration .to:

Year end=d on 31’ March 2£I24

(ay Statutory Auditors:-

t } is Auditor*

(\i) Certification F-aé& Cor".’é'yance Exp.

2.30 jnou e/Expenditure in Foreign Ci rrendy

Year endl on31’ Ł1a‹ch

Inconien Fo:eign Cuvency

Expendilure in Forei'rjn Gurrenćy •

(a) Raz małerials (CII- basis)

[b) Others

1

2024

5171

a) ValLte of ImPcrted raw materials. packing rriateriale.

spare parts Ono con1porłerits consumed

b) Vnlua ofind”igenous raw niat=riafs. packing

materials, spare parts and components consumed 5612

c) Percentage ofa bove to total consumstion

‹j Ilt\gorted ruw materi :s. packing materials, spare

parts and coi\iponenłs consunaert

ii) lndigenous raw ma1erials. paoklng małerials,

spa‹e parts and c0i1\poneńts consu*ed

2.3ú Corporatd social respons:'hiIities —

ÜFGSS El DUCtt FoQuiFOd IG ba spent f4uring the yea — T14 3fl

AClual amount spet on CSR acïivitles Iuri'.r ttne yEar - T1fl ?

Z.33 Finan0ia| risk ma naganlant oDjecti'7es ari›J pplicies

52”/.

13.19

1

20Z3

l335T



The Companys ptiilcipal financial IIodiII\ es comptiae trade and otFier payables. Tne

main purpose of these ñnancial liablllties ie !o finance the Pumpany’s g|ueraticns. T\-.e

Company's principal flnancial assets include loans, trade and gther r=ceiuables, and

cash and cash equivâle.ñts that derive directly from its op-eratlons.

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financia| risks: ni arket ris‹ eredI r'sk

and llquldity risk. J”neC onipañy's focus is lu fcres+e like Ll'spr edictafJil ily u! " .uf::.i£J'

markets. and seek luminimize potenIia| ad verse effects on Its financial pa ormaiJce.

Market risk is primarI!y in the forts ol exchange rate flu¢ñuatiun. Tti< company is rot

usin'g forward Contracts to mitigate foreignuxcñan0El’related risk exposures. FOF SoIT]E•

years there is vmy little fluctuation in foreign exchange rates.

Gredit nsk is the rt3k thata cristoicet allo' ed a ci edlt laciïïly may fio\ he nor ^:'s osntract

for tin\ely p.ayinet1l wlilch may lead to financial ross to the Cömnany Customer eren.I

risk is' managed by marketing department through theC ol pany's eslabiishecl pöliüy.

procedures and control ra.lating to customer cre.dit plek manageme.nt. Credit quality of

each customer is: assessed and credI1 lil:iits are deFineü in accordanc= \vitL' this

assessment. OutstandJng Customer receivables and -se-curity deposits are '†üulafl\

‹zonilo ed.

The *ompany's .principal source of liquidity is cash and cash @utvalsnts and the casf-

fiow thai is g•.neraleJ From operatior'5.T ne Company has mo outstanU]lJg Term Loans

TheC impany's present Production anr4 Opeiation 1evel Is 50a?.. TI-iere is no i.' uN i\ +•.

2.34 Additional disciosures as required under schedule III of the Complriies Act 2013.

I, Title deeds of. all Inn movable p•opertIes are held In n'ame of the Company as

at 31 Lflarch 5024

. The Goulpany does not hold any Investment Pro,pGrty in its books o!

accounts. so fair vaIua|ion of investment pi”operty is riot applfcab'e

3. TI ie compar\y has flow devalued ally of its Property, Plant& EqHi I'›icelJ' i! :I -

rxJrren: yearA fast year.

4. The co'mpBny has net revaluaci any of its IñtaiJgifiln assct-> in the «Urtar' y*ar

5. The Company Fias. nol ul anteJ any loans or ądvanc.es to promoters

directors, KMP's .ar'd the relaled pai1ies tfial ale re\dyahle cn demar ni’

n'ithout specifying amy ternJs or period of repayment.

E. DiscłosLi es refateci tć Cap'tDI \'\/rirk-‹n-Pr4gress

Capital

(f In Lakh)



TCWIP)

Chi\torgarh

Jhangram 23.

PrDjeci

4 — - 27

VVorkIn’ L< llcnl l-2y<ors 2-5y°•rs lW«'c lh.

Chittorgar s0 - -

h Project

Jhargram 4

— 59

4

fi») ñ0pItaIStork-in-Pfagres• lC fPJ -uompletjon schedule. tor projects overcuca

scsi overruns as compared •oorigfrol plea as on J1’ March. 2024

Chlttofgar

h Project

_'SiiguI 1.0D

Jhafgrarn !0O0

Frojecl

2000 1000 -

100

1000

( |nLakh)



Rntio

DEP ’Plant Project ü0fnplele4 an.d no cest pvBrri.i i\:

SSP Shod Project cempletect and no cost ôv uns

Turbine Projedt coi0pleted and no cost oye+runs

SSP NABL Project pàrtial|y dompleted and n0 cost Ovorruns

& Acid

7. Company isnothaving any transaction with the CcnJPanies stiuck off undei

the sectlon 24b 'of the Companies Act.2013 or Section 560 oftheC ompaniss

Act 195G

B. The r9 are no charges or s.at\sfaction y/hiuh ar* to be ros is'ar=d wi\!i f

beyond stalLitory period.

9. Tnara rs no material diffeionce in the quarterly i eturn's and s.iat=nient 0t

current assets filed by the Company with bankers with r ard to woi klng

caplta| liniits

10 Tle Ccrnpany hab nutpravioed nor take.n ariy loan or advance

other peiscn or ent#y with the rinderstanding that benefit of ile

will go Ioa thlrd gzlftg, the ultinsąte beńeficiai Y.

11. Ralios as req\łlred under schedule IłI of Compalljes Act.

NtJnteŃtcr FY 2022- ?r

014

ii- : i.'a te:-

i.-rz rp'.'. J ń'i rrr- ''

fi'ń i• I! a"k

h ri ą•i ce cu 9t



Tré0e

roceiva0leé

fumoar

The

ra1io

on,pIoyud

Povenue from Avar @a tra'de 0 $p

operot!0rrs receivables

Dpeninq

Jnvcnlnry'/

Fi«|ulaJ
Good* gtockin

trmruritlos

of long term

borrev I‹ ‹Is

! 1 18

RQ'/ fL85.,. 5".7B0

tirnovar rotié

uhom% ne'+»'

%ddo’>

acc-muIsuou due

the jaar.

The' iov/ar ratio

c ñ rii J iJ ri iiu In r:

›ear.

roduceiJ

luargfi1aI|\' due

I lgfior I ..iI i:/\'ur

*lJn1’i iria!giri :I ring

2.35 Thg Company hasprepared crucial statements which conIply smith Ind AS app||Gab:u

for period eñd!ñg 31 lUar«h, 2OZ4. FiB*ffW In the financial statements leave bar.

rounded off to the noa rest in lakh.


